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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended March 31, 2000 and 1999 2000 1999 2000

Net sales ¥851,830 ¥852,060 $8,036,132
Operating income (loss) 4,143 (4,127) 39,085
Ordinary loss (948) (6,044) (8,943)
Loss before income taxes and minority interest (4,092) (11,665) (38,604)
Net loss (7,423) (17,388) (70,028)

As of March 31, 2000 and 1999

Shareholders’ equity 153,945 157,425 1,452,311
Total assets 937,233 994,761 8,841,821

Yen U.S. dollars

Per share amounts:
Net loss ¥(10.38) ¥(24.31) $(0.098)

Note: U.S. dollar amounts in this annual report are translated, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥106.00=U.S.$1.

F I N A N C I A L  H I G H L I G H T S
Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Established in 1923, Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. has now been pioneering

technologies that contribute to the prosperity of customers and

society for almost 80 years.

In June 2000, Fuji Electric Group launched the “S21 Plan,” a

new medium-term management vision to steer the Fuji Electric

Group into the 21st century. The aim of this plan is to bolster the

Fuji Electric Group’s standing as the company that provides customers

with the highest satisfaction. This will be accomplished by rein-

forcing core areas such as power semiconductor devices and

other power electronic products, low-voltage circuit breakers and

switches, systems businesses such as water treatment systems,

and vending machines. At the same time, the “S21 Plan” calls for

the concentration of resources on four areas with excellent

growth potential: environment, information systems, services and

components. Through flexible and dynamic management, Fuji

Electric intends to drive renewed growth across the entire Group

in line with a unified management vision.

Cautionary Statement With Respect to Forward-Looking Statements
Statements made in this annual report with respect to Fuji Electric’s plans, strategies and future performance are forward-looking statements based on management’s assumptions and
beliefs in light of the information currently available to it, and involve risks and uncertainties. Potential risks and uncertainties include: (1) sudden changes in general economic conditions
in Fuji Electric’s markets and changes in its operating environment such as those resulting from changes in trade regulations; (2) exchange rates, particularly between the yen and the
U.S. dollar and Asian and European currencies; (3) the ability of Fuji Electric and its subsidiaries to develop and introduce products that incorporate new technology in a timely manner
and to manufacture them in a cost-effective way; (4) the rapid pace of technological innovation, especially in the field of electronics; (5) sudden changes in the supply and demand
balance in the markets Fuji Electric serves; (6) problems involving the intellectual property of Fuji Electric and other companies; and other risk factors. Accordingly, actual results could
differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statement.

A Message From the President 1

Special Feature: the “S21 Plan” 2

Review of Operations 6

Energy & Electric Systems Group 8

ED&C·Drive Systems Group 12

Electronics Group 16

Retail Support Equipment & Systems Group 20

Others 24

Research and Development 26

Environmental Activities 28

Management 30

Financial Section 31

Consolidated Subsidiaries 48

Global Activities 50

Organization Chart 52

Corporate Data 53



F U J I  E L E C T R I C      1

A  M E S S A G E  F R O M  T H E  P R E S I D E N T

The fiscal year ended March 31, 2000 was an extremely challenging

one for the Fuji Electric Group. It was also a year in which we took

decisive action to restructure our organization. As a result, I am

convinced that we now have a solid operating structure with which

to launch a new offensive.

While Japan’s economy during the year under review was

sustained by public investment, and the housing market began to

pick up, consumer spending and private-sector capital investment as

a whole languished. And with public-sector demand running out of

steam during the second half of the fiscal year, there was little sense

of true recovery.

Amid such an operating environment, we undertook a far-reaching

management reorganization, introducing an internal company system

and an executive officer system. At the same time, we accelerated

measures designed to raise Group performance. We formed strategic

alliances with other companies and restructured non-profitable

businesses. Measures included the establishment of several new

companies. We also realigned manufacturing and sales subsidiaries

to bolster Group management, shed excess personnel, trimmed

total assets and decreased interest-bearing debt to reinforce our

financial position.

The Energy & Electric Systems Group recorded higher sales

resulting from the delivery of several large orders of power generating

equipment to overseas customers, and the Electronics Group registered

an increase in sales of power semiconductors and ICs thanks to the

recovery of demand in these sectors. These gains, however, were

offset by lower sales in the ED&C·Drive Systems Group, the magnetic

disk business of the Electronics Group and in the Retail Support

Equipment & Systems Group. Accordingly, net sales were almost

unchanged from the previous fiscal year, at ¥851.8 billion ($8,036

million). Combined with lower costs as a result of restructuring, the

recovery in demand from the second half of the year in low-voltage

circuit breakers and switches in the ED&C·Drive Systems Group, and

in power semiconductors in the Electronics Group, enabled us to

significantly improve net loss by ¥10.0 billion to a loss of ¥7.4 billion

($70 million).

During the fiscal year ending March 31, 2001, we will step up the

development of new products and technology, and continue to

aggressively rein in costs through drastic measures such as the reform

of our domestic and overseas manufacturing structure. Simultaneously,

we will put in place a stronger marketing and service network that

can offer timely solutions meeting exacting customer requirements.

We will also prioritize Group management and establish an operating

structure capable of generating higher earnings.

In the Energy & Electric Systems Group, we will focus on expanding

operations in the areas of information systems, environment and

services. We are also expecting growth in the ED&C·Drive Systems

Group, and in the power semiconductor and IC businesses of the

Electronics Group. Plans call for total net sales of ¥880.0 billion

and a net profit of ¥6.0 billion. The aim is to return the Company to

profitability for the first time in three years.

Over the past two years, we have boldly restructured Fuji Electric.

Until now, our objective has been defensive—to put in place an

operating structure capable of withstanding the dramatic changes

taking place in our industry and the harsh operating climate. Now

we are ready to take the offensive by shifting the focus of reform to

corporate growth and the expansion of our businesses.

In June 2000, we launched the “S21 Plan,” a practical, medium-term

management vision to steer Fuji Electric into the 21st century. At the

core of this vision is our wish to raise the presence of the Fuji Electric

Group, and to contribute to various sectors of society and to our

customers through original products, technologies and services.

Our mission is to create a company that can benefit shareholders,

customers and employees alike. In accomplishing this, we aim to

promote corporate growth, generate a reasonable profit and share

the benefits with our employees and society as a whole. Resting on

this fundamental management philosophy, this corporate vision

outlines new management concepts and fundamental strategies to

drive renewed progress throughout the Fuji Electric Group. This

vision forms a base for our detailed medium-term business plan and,

moving forward, we are confident that it will yield tangible results.

By drawing upon expertise nurtured over many decades, and

expediting the application of the latest developments in IT, the

Fuji Electric Group is poised to enter a new stage in its corporate

history—a stage in which offering maximum customer satisfaction

will be the key to success. We request your continuing support as

we strive to make this vision a reality and live up to the expectations

of our shareholders, customers and employees.

Kunihiko Sawa
President and Chief Executive Officer



F U J I  E L E C T R I C      2

T O  O U R  S H A R E H O L D E R S

QTell us about Fuji Electric’s new medium-term management vision, the “S21 Plan.”

Our mission is to be the company that provides customers with the highest satisfaction.

The “S21 Plan” provides us with the direction and the means to accomplish this. The “S”

stands for Satisfaction, Speed and Sensibility.

The plan hinges on the concept of creating valuable products and services to maximize

customer satisfaction by working with customers in the business-to-business (B2B) sector—an

area where our strong track record is recognized throughout the industry. This, we believe, will

lead to long-term growth for the Fuji Electric Group.

To accomplish this, we must harness the wisdom,

knowledge and creativity of every Fuji Electric

employee to provide superior services, develop

advanced technology and offer unsurpassed quality.

Through the “S21 Plan,” we aim to raise our

presence in the B2B field, which is the main focus of our operations. This will involve turning

the Fuji Electric Group into the “Most Valuable Service Provider” to industries that form the

basis for social infrastructure, to general industry and to the retail sector. Providing optimum,

high-quality services to customers will be at the core of these efforts. In addition, we aim to

earn a reputation as the “Most Valuable Components Provider” by supplying customers with

components of outstanding quality that can be incorporated into their own products. To realize

these aims, it is essential that we continue to reinforce our management structure and put in

place an operating base capable of generating new value.

In terms of Group management, the parent company will increasingly take on the role of a

holding company. Currently, the Fuji Electric Group comprises four groups centered on the

internal companies, and a fifth group comprising Group companies involved in other activities.

The raising of corporate value across the entire Group forms the cornerstone of our strategy.

This can only be achieved by raising value within each of the five operating sectors. In other

words, we aim to expand operations by making each internal company and Group company

the leading specialist within its own field.

In terms of specific operations, first of all we will concentrate on core existing businesses

that still have great potential. These include power semiconductor devices and other power

electronic products, low-voltage circuit breakers and switches, systems businesses such as

water treatment systems, and vending machines. The focus will be on responding to environ-

mental issues, increasing our use of IT and offering enhanced services. Furthermore, we will

concentrate the resources of the whole Fuji Electric Group on four key fields with high growth

potential: environment, information, services and components. In this way, we will endeavor

to leverage our strengths in specific fields to supply technology that meets market needs.

To make this vision a reality, we are implementing the “Seven-Challenge Program.” The

vision will unfold in two stages: the strategic growth phase, which will continue for three

years until the end of March 2003, and the growth acceleration phase, which will take us up

A
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to the end of March 2006. We aim to complete the first stage with net sales of ¥1,000 billion,

ordinary income of ¥30 billion and ROE of 10%. For the fiscal year ending March 31, 2006,

we aim to have net sales of ¥1,200 billion, ordinary income of ¥60 billion and ROE of 15%.

What specific areas are being addressed by the “Seven-Challenge Program”?

Many issues need to be addressed to take the Fuji Electric Group back onto the offensive

and spur renewed corporate growth. The seven policies were devised to solve these problems.

The first four are operating strategies for environmental, information systems, service and

component operations. The remaining three are management strategies: complete implemen-

tation of the internal company system and strengthen corporate governance; improve the

Group’s financial structure; and establish new personnel and training systems.

What strategies will you be implementing regarding the core growth areas of environment,

information, services and components?

Policies for Environmental Operations—“Most Valuable Service Provider” Area

We are designating environmental operations as a core business of the entire Fuji Electric

Group. As such, a large proportion of resources will be focused on this field. Plans call for the

development of the water environment preservation business, the new-energy business, the

energy-saving management business, the waste treatment business and the zero-emission

business. Growth in these operations will be driven by the Energy & Electric Systems Group

and the ED&C·Drive Systems Group.

We will move further into the environmental field by mobilizing our considerable plant

expertise, starting with the systems technology built up over many years in areas such as

energy, industrial plants and water treatment. At the same time, we will expand our refuse-

derived fuel (RDF) power generation business and waste treatment facility operations. And, in

addition to supplying equipment and infrastructure, we will bolster the service and technology

side of operations by supplying maintenance, monitoring and energy

conservation consulting services tailored precisely to customer requirements.

In terms of targets, we are aiming for net sales of ¥120 billion for the

fiscal year ending March 2003, and ¥150 billion for the year ending

March 2006.

Policies for Information Systems Operations—“Most

Valuable Service Provider” Area

In information systems, our objective is to use IT to raise the profitability of our customers’

businesses by providing comprehensive solutions that bring together both the plant and service

aspects of our business. The Energy & Electric Systems Group, ED&C·Drive Systems Group and

Retail Support Equipment & Systems Group will be at the heart of these operations.

Through our Solution_MEISTER menu, which will form the strategic core of this business, we

intend to offer solutions to customers in a diverse array of fields, including distribution, food-

stuffs, electric power and government agencies. To accomplish this, we will focus resources on

this sector while reinforcing our operating base through alliances with other companies. At

A
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the same time, we will nurture talented systems

engineers and launch an information dealer’s

system. The restructuring of Group companies will

also form part of these efforts.

Our net sales targets are ¥140 billion for the year ending March 2003, and ¥200 billion for

the year ending March 2006.

Policies for Service Operations—“Most Valuable Service Provider” Area

Here, our objective is to provide service solutions in all fields in which we are active, including

heavy electrical equipment, by combining the plant experience of the Fuji Electric Group with

its expertise in services. Operations will center on the Energy & Electric Systems Group, the

ED&C·Drive Systems Group and the Retail Support Equipment & Systems Group.

We aim to establish an operating structure that will allow us to offer services and products

that span the complete lifecycle of plant and other equipment. These will range from the

initial proposing of solutions to the running, maintenance and control of plants, the upgrading

and extension of the useful life of equipment, and its eventual disposal. In this way, we will

raise levels of customer satisfaction and reduce the lifecycle costs of plant and equipment.

The new operating structure will endeavor to link these services to new product and business

development, as well as making service operations profitable in their own right.

Our net sales targets are ¥70 billion for the year ending March 2003, and ¥100 billion for

the year ending March 2006.

Policies for Component Operations—“Most Valuable Components Provider” Area

Leveraging the technological expertise acquired in the fields of power electronics and low-volt-

age circuit breakers and switches, we will pursue a strategy of specialization by supplying

distinctive products on a global basis. Through this policy, we aim to establish the Fuji Electric

Group as the “Most Valuable Components Provider” in specific fields. The ED&C·Drive Systems

Group and Electronics Group will be the driving force behind these efforts.

In terms of specific aims, in the IC business, we will set out to be the leading maker of power-

supply ICs. In the discrete semiconductor business, we aim to become the world’s leading

provider of power semiconductors to fields such as industrial equipment, IT, and automobiles

by increasing the intelligence of our products and accelerating the formation of strategic

alliances with other companies. In magnetic disks, we are aiming for market leadership by

moving into AV equipment, as well as continuing to supply disks for PCs and servers. We also

aim to be the world’s most prominent company in the field of low-voltage circuit breakers

and switches by globalizing production and marketing. Finally, in the field of power electronics

products, we aim to capitalize on our strength in power semiconductor technology to dominate

the market for power semiconductor applications.

We are aiming for net sales of ¥200 billion for the year ending March 2003, and ¥250

billion for the year ending March 2006.
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QTell us about the management policies outlined in the “Seven-Challenge Program.”

The new management style of the Fuji Electric Group aims to strike the optimum balance

between centripetal force and centrifugal force: the former to keep the focus on the overall

management vision, and the latter to allow the internal companies and Group companies to

expand operations and develop new markets. To fully establish this management system, the

“Seven-Challenge Program” calls in particular for the full implementation of the internal

company system and the strengthening of corporate governance.

First, regarding the internal company system, we will maximize autonomy by transferring

more decision-making authority to each group. By allowing the groups to act as independent

companies, we aim to establish each as the leading specialist in its own particular field. The

same applies to Group companies. Strategic alliances will be sought where achieving preemi-

nence independently is likely to prove problematic. At the same time, we will take decisive

action to divest or withdraw from businesses where the outlook is bleak.

As we strengthen corporate governance in tandem with completing implementation of the

internal company system, the parent company will increasingly take on the role of a holding

company. As this process takes place, we will also reinforce Group management to maintain

focus on the overall vision. Authority for amalgamations, spin-offs and reorganization relating

to Group companies will rest with the senior management of the parent company. We will

also endeavor to promote the efficient use of capital and ensure each group takes full

responsibility for its own management by making the rate of return on investment our key

performance indicator.

In terms of improving our financial structure, plans call for ROE of 4% for the fiscal year

ending March 2001, 10% for the year ending March 2003 and 15% for the

year ending March 2006. We will also implement a policy of selection and

focus throughout the whole Fuji Electric Group. By doing so, we aim to

improve both total asset turnover and the interest-bearing debt ratio, and to

establish an operating structure capable of generating higher earnings. In

addition, we will strengthen market value accounting through actions such as

the lump-sum processing of unreserved retirement liabilities.

Other initiatives call for the establishment of new personnel and training systems. As with

our results-based appraisal system for operating groups, we will introduce a performance-

based personnel system for individual employees. We will also implement a staff training

system and placement program designed to bring out the creativity and originality of all

employees, thereby creating a corporate culture that values individuality. As part of this drive,

we will expand our internal recruiting system. Finally, we will be increasing the number of

solutions engineers as we strive to nurture the specialist knowledge needed to drive future

business reform.

A
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Energy & Electric Systems
G r o u p

ED&C·Drive Systems
G r o u p

◆ A system solutions

provider, tackling problems

for clients in social

infrastructure fields such as

electric power, water

treatment, transport and

environmental systems, as

well as in various fields

relating to information

control systems.

◆ Provider of components

and small-scale systems in

fields such as factory

automation (FA). Through

continual development, this

group aims to meet

changing customer needs.

R E V I E W  O F  O P E R A T I O N S

In April 1999, Fuji Electric introduced an internal company system, under which the company

was reorganized into four internal companies: the Energy & Electric Systems Company, the

ED&C·Drive Systems Company, the Electronics Company and the Retail Support Equipment

& Systems Company. At the same time, segments have been revised, with five segments—

F U J I  E L E C T R I C      6
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Retail Support Equipment
& Systems

G r o u p

Electronics
G r o u p

◆ This group supplies

distinctive electronic

components based on

original technology.

Serving sectors ranging

from industrial equipment

to IT, it contributes to the

development of downsized,

high-performance and

energy-conserving

products.

◆ In addition to the supply of

vending machines, refrigerated

showcases and related systems,

this group is now positioning

itself as a food retail solutions

provider. The incorporation of

energy-conserving technology

into products is one focus of

operations, as is raising

convenience and comfort

for consumers.

Energy & Electric Systems, ED&C·Drive Systems, Electronics, Retail Support Equipment &

Systems, and Others—replacing the three segments of Electrical Equipment, Control/

Information Systems and Electronic Devices, and Consumer-Related and Other Products.

F U J I  E L E C T R I C      7
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mainproducts

Katsuhiro Ose      President, Energy & Electric  Systems Company

INFORMATION, TELECOMMUNICATION
AND CONTROL SYSTEMS

WATER TREATMENT AND MEASURING
SYSTEMS

ELECTRIC POWER SYSTEMS

RADIATION MONITORING SYSTEMS

FA AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEMS

ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS

APPLICATION SYSTEMS FOR MOTORS

INDUSTRIAL POWER SUPPLIES

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT FOR ROLLING
STOCK

CLEAN-ROOM FACILITIES

LASER DEVICES

VISUAL EQUIPMENT

WATT-HOUR METERS

SUBSTATION SYSTEMS

THERMAL POWER PLANT EQUIPMENT

HYDROELECTRIC POWER PLANT
EQUIPMENT

NUCLEAR POWER PLANT EQUIPMENT

ENERGY SAVING SYSTEMS

NEW ENERGY GENERATING SYSTEMS

OVERVIEW OF OPERATING

ENVIRONMENT AND

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

ENDED MARCH 31, 2000

In the field of electric power

industries, we develop, engineer

and build thermal, hydro and

nuclear power plants, as well as

related power transmission and

distribution systems, manufac-

turing key components like

turbines and generators at our

own factories. Business also

extends to renewable sources of

energy such as photovoltaic

cells, fuel cells and wind power,

and environmentally harmoni-

ous combined cycle power

plants. Against a background of

moderate economic recovery in

Asia, sales for the fiscal year

ended March 31, 2000 in-

creased sharply in comparison

with last year due to delivery of

a series of large orders. Most

notable were the supply of four

units of 600 MW steam turbines

and generators to a customer in

Taiwan and rectifier-transformer

equipment for an aluminum

smelting plant in Mozambique.

In the industrial systems field,

we focus on electric motor

application drive systems as well

as transportation systems, which

include substation equipment

for railways and electrical

equipment for rolling stock. We

also supply plant systems such

as clean room facilities and

cogeneration plants. Sales in

this field declined sharply

compared with last year due to

a slump in private-sector capital

expenditure that led to fewer

large orders.

In the control systems field,

we continued to focus our

business on the application of

IT, communications and control

technology. Products include

water treatment systems, social

infrastructure-related systems,

electric power control systems,

measuring instruments, factory

automation (FA) systems and

environment-related systems.

Sales in this field were largely

unchanged from the previous

fiscal year as government

economic stimulus measures

contributed to stable demand

for electric systems for water

purification plants and sewage

treatment facilities, and efforts

to expand new environment-

related businesses began to

yield results.

Due to the above, net sales in

this group increased by 5.3% to

¥381.6 billion ($3,601 million).

Operating income rose by

approximately ¥7.0 billion to ¥6.1

billion ($58 million), reflecting a

reduction in fixed and other

costs arising from reforms to

our operating structure.

Energy &
Electric Systems Group

ENERGY & ELECTRIC SYSTEMS GROUP WE ARE CURRENTLY REALLOCATING OUR BUSINESS RESOURCES TO

FOCUS ON THREE CORE FIELDS: ENVIRONMENT, INFORMATION SYSTEMS AND SERVICES. IN THE ENVIRONMENT FIELD,

WE WILL DEVELOP NEW BUSINESSES SUCH AS ENERGY-CONSERVATION, NEW-ENERGY UTILIZATION, WASTE TREATMENT FACILITIES, REFUSE-DERIVED

 FUEL (RDF) POWER GENERATION AND ADVANCED WATER TREATMENT SYSTEMS BY RESTRUCTURING EXISTING ENVIRONMENT-RELATED OPERATIONS.

IN THE FIELD OF INFORMATION SYSTEMS, WE WILL EXPAND THE SCOPE OF OPERATIONS AND DEVELOP NEW MARKETS IN BOTH THE PUBLIC AND PRIVATE

SECTORS. THIS WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED BY ENHANCING OUR SOLUTION_MEISTER MENU, BOLSTERING EFFORTS

TO NURTURE SKILLED SYSTEMS ENGINEERS AND LAUNCHING AN INFORMATION DEALER’S SYSTEM.

THE ROLES OF AFFILIATED COMPANIES WILL ALSO BE REASSESSED. LASTLY, IN THE FIELD OF SERVICES,

WE WILL OFFER OUR CUSTOMERS FULL SATISFACTION, INTRODUCING A NEW BUSINESS MODEL AND AN ENHANCED SERVICE MENU.
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Solution_MEISTER, a suite of services based on Fuji Electric’s extensive first-hand systems expertise and leading-edge IT and communications technology.
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Energy & Electric Systems
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ENERGY & ELECTRIC SYSTEMS GROUP

MEASURES TAKEN DURING

THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

In the year under review, the

Energy & Electric Systems Group

focused on two core themes:

solutions and services. With

solutions, we drew upon the

group’s technological prowess

in IT, environmental technology

and energy to provide optimal

solutions for customers. In

services, we have been strength-

ening our ability to offer a

broad spectrum of services

spanning the entire lifecycle of

products, rather than just the

maintenance and inspection of

equipment. Raising customer

satisfaction was our objective.

To strengthen marketing

activities, we set up three sales

divisions targeting electric power

industries, the public sector and

the industrial sector. Under this

organization, each sales division

worked closely with operating

divisions, branches, subsidiaries

and affiliates to capture more

orders.

In the field of electric power

and industrial systems, all actions

were guided by our “customer

first” principle. Marketing

activities encompassed engi-

neering and manufacturing

aspects to deliver customer

satisfaction. Furthermore, we

worked strategically to win new

customers by, among other

things, obtaining and acting

upon information on potential

projects, proactively proposing

solutions and developing new

products and new fields.

In the public sector, our key

policy was to develop new

businesses to lineup alongside

our current core operations.

Consequently, we focused

resources on newly developed

IT and environment-related

systems, in addition to our water

treatment systems. We also

enhanced marketing operations

in the public sector and social

systems field by opening ten

new sales offices.

With the introduction of the

internal company system in April

1999, this group was divided

into five operating divisions: the

Information & Control Systems

Division (further divided into the

Information Systems Division

and the Environmental Systems

Division in October 1999); the

Industrial & Transportation

Systems Division; the Power

Supply Equipment Division; the

Power Transmission & Distribu-

tion Division; and the Thermal

and Nuclear Power Division. In

addition, the manufacturing

bases at Tokyo, Chiba and

Kawasaki were attached to the

Information & Control Systems

Division, the Power Transmission

& Distribution Division, and the

Thermal and Nuclear Power

Division, respectively. We thus

put in place a management

structure that unifies operating

divisions, manufacturing bases

and related subsidiaries and

affiliates.

In information systems opera-

tions, we focused on transform-

ing our group into an IT-driven

solutions provider. To bring

about this change, we devel-

oped our new range of

Solution_MEISTER products and

services, bolstered systems

engineering capabilities and

stepped up marketing activities.

In environmental systems

operations, we enhanced our

sales and service bases to

strengthen our regional presence

and capture more orders in

the public-sector market. Also,

following in the footsteps of our

industrial and transportation

systems operations, we obtained

ISO 9001 certification during

the year. In industrial and

transportation systems opera-

tions, we strove to expand our

solutions business, which in this

field focuses primarily on power

electronics application systems

and clean room facilities. In

thermal power plant operations,

the outlook improved thanks to

potential new orders from

A hybrid power generation system
utilizing two renewable sources of
energy: wind and solar.

Notes:
1. Statistics for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999 and the fiscal

year ended March 31, 2000 reflect actual results for this group.
2. Statistics for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2001 are based on

management’s estimates as at May 11, 2000.
3. Net sales include inter-segment transactions.

� Net Sales
� Share of Total Net Sales
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� Depreciation

independent power producers

(IPPs). In addition, we inaugu-

rated operations at a new state-

of-the-art manufacturing facility,

the Shiraishi Factory, which

forms part of our Kawasaki

manufacturing base. Finally, to

improve the group’s service

capabilities, this year saw the

launch of the Customer Services

Promotion Office, which covers

all operating units within the

group, and a 24-hour call center

to deal with customer inquiries.

MANAGEMENT POLICIES

AND PROJECTED RESULTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDING

MARCH 31, 2001

During the current fiscal year,

ending March 31, 2001, the

Energy & Electric Systems Group

will accelerate its shift to a

“solutions” and “services”

oriented business structure to

respond to rapid progress in IT

and services.

We will implement four basic

operating policies. First, by

emphasizing the autonomy of

the group and implementing

consolidated management, we

will acquire the agility to re-

spond to rapid changes in our

operating environment. Second,

ongoing efforts will be made to

raise quality while aggressively

cutting costs. By doing so, we

hope to win the increased trust

of customers and to raise their

satisfaction levels. Third, the

current fiscal year is being

positioned as the first year of a

new era of solutions and ser-

vices. We intend to implement

the necessary changes and get

new operations up and running

as soon as possible. To this end,

we will offer a more compre-

hensive suite of solutions and

services. Fourth, we will see all

the restructuring programs that

we launched last year through

to completion. Through these

measures, we will establish a

business structure capable of

yielding higher earnings.

In terms of specific fields, in

information systems, we will

expand our range of Solution-

_MEISTER services and develop

new markets in both the public

and private sectors. We will also

launch new training programs

to nurture skilled systems

engineers and set up an infor-

mation dealer’s system. Finally,

we will review the functions of

subsidiaries and affiliates and

re-group them to meet chang-

ing business needs wherever

necessary.

In environmental systems, we

will develop new businesses in

energy-conservation services,

new-energy power generation

systems, advanced water treat-

ment systems, waste treatment

systems and refuse-derived fuel

(RDF) systems. At the same

time, we will offer enhanced

environmental products and

services in all fields of operation

covered by this group.

Another major task for the

year is to expand service opera-

tions. We will bolster the range

of services offered by the newly

established Customer Service

Division and by affiliates and

subsidiaries who specialize in

these areas. In diagnostic and

after-sales services, we will

strengthen services offered

and adopt a more profitable

business structure.

In light of the foregoing,

projections for the fiscal year

ending March 31, 2001 are for

net sales to rise by 11.1% to

¥424.0 billion, and operating

income by 63.5% to ¥10.0

billion.

A monitoring and control system.

Four 600 MW steam turbine generators
were supplied to Formosa Petrochemical
Corporation, Taiwan’s first major IPP.

Operating
Income

(Loss)
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mainproducts
MAGNETIC CONTACTORS

OPERATION INDICATORS

INDUSTRIAL RELAYS

TIME DELAY RELAYS

GAS DETECTORS

MOLDED-CASE CIRCUIT BREAKERS

EARTH-LEAKAGE CIRCUIT BREAKERS

CURRENT-LIMITING FUSES

HIGH-VOLTAGE DISTRIBUTION
EQUIPMENT

CAST RESIN TRANSFORMERS

POWER FACTOR REGULATORS

ENERGY MONITORING UNITS

AC POWER REGULATORS

SWITCHES FOR DETECTION

PROGRAMMABLE LOGIC CONTROLLERS

PROGRAMMABLE OPERATION DISPLAYS

MULTIPLEX TRANSMISSION SYSTEMS

INDUCTION MOTORS

SYNCHRONOUS MOTORS

GEARED MOTORS

BRAKE MOTORS

FANS

PUMPS

BLOWERS

GENERAL PURPOSE INVERTERS

SERVOMOTOR SYSTEMS

INDUCTION HEATING INVERTERS

UNINTERRUPTIBLE POWER SUPPLIES

MINI UNINTERRUPTIBLE POWER SUPPLIES

OVERVIEW OF OPERATING

ENVIRONMENT AND

RESULTS FOR THE FISCAL

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2000

In Electric Distribution & Control

(ED&C), the domestic market

remained tough during the first

half of the fiscal year due to

tightened capital expenditure

among our customers. We

sharpened R&D focus, refreshed

most of our core product lines

and brought many new models

to the market, including new

additions to the NEO SC series

of magnetic contactors and the

MICREX-SX series of program-

mable logic controllers (PLCs).

These efforts combined with

moderate recovery in the

domestic market and in our key

Asian markets in the year’s

second half to push sales above

last year’s level.

In Drive Systems, we success-

fully introduced new models,

including additions to our

11-series inverters (AC drive)

and our FALDIC- � AC-servo

systems, and we worked hard

to expand sales in a market that

remained slow. However, we

recorded a year-to-year decline

in sales due to major negative

factors such as low capital

expenditure among customers

in Japan during the first half of

the year, stagnation in the

Chinese market where we have

a leading position and the

appreciation of the yen against

the euro.

Overall, net sales in ED&C·Drive

Systems decreased by 2.0% to

¥156.0 billion ($1,473 million);

however, by the end of the

fiscal year, our main products

had been successfully renewed,

and almost all products had

increased their market share.

Operating loss was ¥2.4 billion

($23 million), due to expenses

associated with restructuring

programs that have already

improved profitability greatly

compared to the previous year.

MEASURES TAKEN DURING

THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

The fiscal year ended March

1999 was the year Fuji ED&C·

Drive Systems recorded a net

loss for the first time due to

the drastic falling curve of the

market. We learned a lot from

this, making our top priority the

establishment of a more profit-

able operating structure. We

have taken several steps toward

realizing this objective. First, we

introduced product strategies

formulated to capture an even

greater share in markets where

we have a strong presence, while

bringing under-performing

product lines back into the

black. The second step was

concerned with R&D focus.

Here, we prioritized selected

projects, aiming to add out-

standing value to new products

and give form to what global

customers require. The third

Yasumasa Umesato      President, ED&C·Drive Systems Company

ED&C·DRIVE SYSTEMS GROUP

ED & C ·
Drive Systems Group

WE WILL AGGRESSIVELY PURSUE PRODUCT STRATEGIES FORMULATED TO

MAXIMIZE OUR STRENGTH, ENABLING US TO PROVIDE WORLD-CLASS QUALITY, PERFORMANCE AND SERVICE TO CUSTOMERS. WE ARE COMMITTED TO THE

PURSUIT OF GROWTH AND PROFIT BY MAKING OUR PRODUCT BASKET MORE ATTRACTIVE AND MORE COST-COMPETITIVE

TO INCREASE SALES VOLUME, ESPECIALLY IN OUR CORE PRODUCT LINES: LOW-VOLTAGE CIRCUIT BREAKERS AND SWITCHES,

GENERAL PURPOSE INVERTERS, AC-SERVO SYSTEMS, PROGRAMMABLE LOGIC CONTROLLERS AND UNINTERRUPTIBLE POWER SUPPLIES.

IN ADDITION, OUR IT CAPABILITIES—INCLUDING OPEN NETWORK COMPATIBILITY AND ADVANCED SOFTWARE TECHNOLOGIES

THAT ARE BEING PACKAGED AND STANDARDIZED—WILL SERVE TO LEVERAGE OUR SYSTEMS BUSINESSES. WE ALSO AIM TO ENHANCE ALLIANCES WITH DOMESTIC

AND FOREIGN PARTNERS TO BROADEN AND DEEPEN THE GLOBALIZATION OF OUR MANUFACTURING, SALES AND SERVICE OPERATIONS.
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The open-network compatible MICREX-SX series of multi-controllers is capable of controlling the most complex of high-speed machinery and measuring instruments.
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ED&C·DRIVE SYSTEMS GROUP

step was to upgrade our sales

activities. We enhanced our

marketing and technical sup-

port network and reviewed the

entire sales process to raise

efficiency levels. We are now

better positioned to provide

more timely and more flexible

solutions to customers for our

small and medium-sized

systems in fields such as factory

automation. As a result of

these efforts, various made-to-

order products were shipped to

meet the diverse requirements

of customers in many regions

throughout the world during

the year. Finally, we worked

hard to optimize our advanced

production facilities, automate

processes, reduce total cost,

raise efficiency in logistics

systems and reduce overall

inventories.

In pursuing our product

strategy, we spun-off R&D and

manufacturing functions in

small- to medium-capacity

industrial motors, an area where

price competition is extremely

fierce. This resulted in the

formation of a new consolidated

subsidiary, Fuji Electric Motor

Co., Ltd., in July 1999. Fuji

Electric Motor did a great job in

increasing cost-competitiveness

in this field by enhancing the

manufacturing system, realigning

automated production lines and

raising production efficiency.

We also raised market share in

almost all product areas through

the pursuit of finely tuned

product strategies. Improved

R&D focus led to the successful

introduction of new models in

core product lines, including

NEO SC magnetic contactors,

MICREX-SX PLCs, 11-series

inverters and FALDIC- � AC-

servo systems. Our zeal to

promote Fuji products led to

the establishment of Techno

Garden at our Osaki head office

in Tokyo. This new facility serves

as a flagship for face-to-face sales

presentations and demonstra-

tions of FA systems and other

small and medium-sized sys-

tems, as well as for technical

training courses for sales

personnel and distributors.

Results so far have been en-

couraging. Also, a fortified

sales network in Europe and a

new sales center in Southeast

Asia raised our competitiveness

and ability to serve customers

in global markets. Finally, we

set up a new logistics center in

west Japan, which is making a

major contribution to reducing

delivery time.

MANAGEMENT POLICIES

AND PROJECTED RESULTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDING

MARCH 31, 2001

Our objective is to provide

world-class levels of quality,

performance and service to

customers for control and drive

components—and for the small

and medium-sized systems

that we build around these

components—in the energy

distribution and conversion

field. We strive to maintain high

profitability while delivering

greater value to customers.

With these goals in mind, the

first focus of our strategies for

the year ending March 2001

will be on the “aggressive

marketing” of our products,

headed by the new additions

that were introduced during

the previous fiscal year.

Following the success of our

inverter (package drive) alliance,

strategy calls for the forming of

similar alliances in PLC and

AC-servo systems to bolster our

competitiveness in global

The FRENIC 5000VG7 series of vector-controlled
inverters offers the highest performance specifica-
tions in the industry.

Notes:
1. Statistics for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999 and the fiscal

year ended March 31, 2000 reflect actual results for this group.
2. Statistics for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2001 are based on

management’s estimates as at May 11, 2000.
3. Net sales include inter-segment transactions.

� Net Sales
� Share of Total Net Sales
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markets. Also, to expand sales

in FA and other small and

medium-sized systems, we

are increasing open network

compatibility. Another under-

taking is the development and

standardization of function-

specific control software pack-

ages. In manufacturing, we will

endeavor to utilize production

facilities in regions where costs

are lower, not only existing

ones in Japan. At the same

time, we will focus marketing

on areas of rapid growth. In

addition, we aim to raise levels

of customer satisfaction by

implementing global quality

management standards, intro-

ducing standardized production

control systems at all factories,

adopting worldwide supply

chain management (SCM), and

by offering advanced services.

More specifically, we have

formulated 6 action plans. First

is the expansion of the ED&C

business. Our aim here is to

gain market share in core

businesses by increasing our

technical level and product

development capabilities. The

second action plan is to imple-

ment a global strategy for

inverters. We will deepen our

ties with General Electric

Company (GE) as we aim for

the top global market share.

Third is to reinforce AC-servo

system operations. Here, we

intend to go beyond simply

supplying high-quality individual

components. While increasing

network compatibility, we will

actively meet demand for small

and medium-sized high-speed

positioning systems by linking

our MICREX-SX and other

components through SX BUS.

The fourth action plan is to

broaden our systems business

capability. Our objective is to

make all the products of this

group network compatible. In

addition, we will provide swift

and smart technical support by

leveraging our IT capabilities to

set up remote control systems

utilizing the Internet and

telecom lines. We also intend

to package our software

technologies. The fifth plan

is to enhance our service

business. With the expansion

of our global businesses,

overseas service centers will

play an increasingly important

role. We have set up service

centers in China, the United

States, Europe and Southeast

Asia. By continuing to expand

this service network, we aim to

further raise levels of customer

satisfaction. The sixth action

plan is to expand global sales

and realign overseas manufac-

turing bases. Finally, we will

work hard to create a more

attractive product basket

compatible with regional and

global standards with the aim

of raising our overseas sales

ratio to above 16%.

In light of the foregoing,

projections for the fiscal year

ending March 31, 2001 are

for sales to rise by 15.3% to

¥180.0 billion and operating

income to jump up to

¥3.0 billion.

The NEO SC series of magnetic
contactors meets all applicable global
standards.

R&D
Expenditures

� Plant and
Equipment
Investment
(Including
Leases)

� Depreciation

Operating
Income

(Loss)
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mainproducts
MAGNETIC DISKS

BIPOLAR POWER TRANSISTORS

POWER MODULES

SMART POWER DEVICES

RECTIFYING DIODES

MONOLITHIC ICS

HYBRID ICS

SEMICONDUCTOR SENSORS

SURGE ABSORBERS

PHOTOCONDUCTIVE DRUMS FOR
COPIERS AND PRINTERS

OVERVIEW OF OPERATING

ENVIRONMENT AND

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

ENDED MARCH 31, 2000

In power semiconductors, sales

remained firm as increased

demand from the IT and com-

munications sector combined

with recovery in the markets for

semiconductor manufacturing

devices and injection molding

machines during the second half

of the fiscal year. In ICs, sales

surpassed last year’s level. This

was due to growing demand for

power supply ICs for use in PCs,

peripheral devices and mobile

telephones, and also buoyant

sales of semiconductor sensors

for use in automobiles, particu-

larly in overseas markets. In

magnetic disks, although the

spread of the Internet stimu-

lated growth in the PC market,

prices dropped and the number

of disks used per hard disk drive

(HDD) declined. As a result,

sales declined considerably in

this field. In photoconductive

drums, although sales volume

increased, monetary sales

dropped due to falling prices

and the strength of the yen

against the euro.

As a result of the above, net

sales in this group declined by

8.8% to ¥116.5 billion ($1,099

million). Operating loss was

¥7.5 billion ($71 million), due

mainly to our inability to cut

costs sufficiently in response to

falling prices, particularly in

magnetic disks.

MEASURES TAKEN DURING

THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

In the power semiconductor

field, we established Fuji Hitachi

Power Semiconductor Co., Ltd.,

a joint venture with Hitachi,

Ltd., in November 1999. The

new company’s primary busi-

ness is the development and

design of power semiconduc-

tors. Combining the R&D

resources and technologies of

both companies will raise

development speed and enable

the production of a broader

range of products responding to

customer needs. The new

venture stands to raise the

profile of both companies in this

market. In the IC field, we

endeavored to increase the

precision, speed and functional-

ity of products by utilizing our

proprietary low-consumption

CMOS analog technology,

which is an integral element of

our mainstay power supply ICs.

Tetsunosuke Ishibashi      President, Electronics Company

Electronics Group

CARVING OUT A ROLE AS A GLOBAL PLAYER, THE ELECTRONICS GROUP AIMS FOR MARKET LEADERSHIP BY

SUPPLYING DISTINCTIVE PRODUCTS TO SPECIFIC SECTORS. STRATEGY CALLS FOR THE MAXIMIZING OF RETURN ON INVESTMENT THROUGHOUT THE ENTIRE

LIFECYCLE OF PRODUCTS. WE PLAN TO MAINTAIN THE WORLD’S HIGHEST STANDARDS OF TECHNOLOGY IN FOUR KEY OPERATIONS.

IN POWER SEMICONDUCTORS, WE WILL STRENGTHEN OUR STRATEGIC ALLIANCE WITH HITACHI, LTD. AND INCREASE THE INTELLIGENCE OF OUR PRODUCTS. OUR

OBJECTIVE IS TO BE THE WORLD’S LEADING SUPPLIER TO FIELDS SUCH AS INDUSTRIAL EQUIPMENT, IT AND AUTOMOBILES. IN THE POWER SUPPLY IC FIELD,

WE WILL SPECIALIZE IN POWER ANALOG ICS BASED ON OUR CMOS TECHNOLOGY. WE ALSO INTEND TO BE THE INDUSTRY LEADER IN POWER MANAGEMENT ICS.

IN MAGNETIC DISKS, WE WILL MAINTAIN OUR POSITION OF STRENGTH BY MOVING INTO THE MARKET FOR AV EQUIPMENT WHILE CONTINUING TO SUPPLY DISKS

FOR PCS AND SERVERS. FINALLY, IN PHOTOCONDUCTIVE DRUMS, WE WILL SEEK THE OPTIMUM BALANCE BETWEEN OUR THREE PRODUCTION BASES,

LOCATED IN JAPAN, THE U.S. AND CHINA, AS WE CARVE OUT A POSITION AS THE TOP SUPPLIER OF ORGANIC PHOTO CONDUCTORS.

ELECTRONICS GROUP
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A power supply, intelligent power device, M-POWER is targeted at PC peripherals, where low power consumption is of the essence.
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ELECTRONICS GROUP

By doing so, we put in place an

enhanced business structure

that will broaden the scope of

operations in this field.

In magnetic disks, we estab-

lished in January 2000 a new

consolidated subsidiary, Fuji

Electric Storage Device Co., Ltd.,

with a view to bolstering R&D

capabilities and increasing cost

competitiveness. By raising all

aspects of technological

strength, accelerating develop-

ment and increasing production

efficiency, the new company

will allow us to prevail in this

fiercely competitive market.

In photoconductive drums,

our aim has been to raise cost

competitiveness and establish a

responsive and flexible global

system of operation manage-

ment. To this end, we estab-

lished Fuji Electric Imaging

Device Co., Ltd., a new consoli-

dated subsidiary, in July 1999 to

handle all aspects of the photo-

conductive drum business, from

R&D and production through

marketing and after-sales

services.

During the year, several new

product lines were launched. In

power semiconductors, we

released the Trench MOSFET

and the M-POWER intelligent

power device for the IT and

communications sector, along

with the Smart IGBT for igniters

and the Smart MOSFET for

automobile use. We also

brought out fourth-generation

IGBT modules for industrial use.

In the IC field, we introduced a

new power supply IC for use in

mobile telephones, video cameras

and inkjet printers. We also

developed a 3.5-inch magnetic

disk with a storage capacity of

around 10 GB and a new

positive-charge type organic

photo conductor (OPC) for use

in printers.

MANAGEMENT POLICIES

AND PROJECTED RESULTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDING

MARCH 31, 2001

Management projections for the

fiscal year ending March 31,

2001 are for net sales to in-

crease by 14.1% to ¥133.0

billion, supporting operating

income of ¥1.0 billion.

In power semiconductors, we

are stepping up R&D activities

so that we can reap the benefits

of our joint venture with Hitachi

as soon as possible. We are also

formulating independent strate-

gies tailored to specific market

sectors, namely automobiles,

industrial equipment, power

supply, and home appliances. In

this way, we will expand opera-

tions by targeting our R&D and

marketing to the specific needs

High-precision analog CMOS power
supply ICs yield low power consump-
tion, making them ideally suited to
small, portable electronic devices such
as mobile telephones, video cameras
and digital cameras.

The Smart MOSFET responds to the
demand for small, lightweight
electronic control devices for automo-
tive applications.

Notes:
1. Statistics for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999 and the fiscal

year ended March 31, 2000 reflect actual results for this group.
2. Statistics for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2001 are based on

management’s estimates as at May 11, 2000.
3. Net sales include inter-segment transactions.

� Net Sales
� Share of Total Net Sales
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of customers. In the IC field, we

aim to build upon our strength

in power management ICs by

leveraging our power analog

ICs, which are based on our

proprietary CMOS analog

technology. We are also laying

the groundwork to obtain QS-

9000 certification, the inter-

national standard for quality

assurance systems in the auto-

mobile industry, for all our

semiconductor operations as

soon as possible as a means of

raising quality.

In magnetic disks, we intend

to launch mass production

technology capable of produc-

ing disks with a capacity of 20

Gbit/inch
2
. In addition to

magnetic disks for hard disk

drives (HDDs) in PCs and servers,

we are also expanding the scope

of our operations to encompass

magnetic disks for HDDs in AV

equipment, an area where

massive future demand is

forecast. Here, too, we aim to

get operations up and running

as soon as possible. Finally, in

photoconductive drums, we aim

to raise our competitiveness in

global markets by striking the

optimum production balance

between the newly established

company in Japan and our two

overseas production bases,

Last year saw the release of a new magnetic disk
with a recording areal density of 10Gbit/inch2.

Fuji Electric’s comprehensive lineup
of highly durable organic photo
conductors (OPCs) for printers and
copiers yields superior picture quality
and speed.

located in the United States

and China.

In addition to implementing

market strategies formulated

specifically for each field of

operations, we also intend to

draw on the combined strength

of all development, manufactur-

ing, sales and administrative

divisions to raise quality and

technological expertise while

reducing costs. At the same

time, we will make efficiency

the decisive factor when consid-

ering capital expenditures and

investments in R&D. By doing

so, we will strive to fulfill the

projections outlined at the

beginning of this section.

R&D
Expenditures

� Plant and
Equipment
Investment
(Including
Leases)

� Depreciation

Operating
Income

(Loss)
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mainproducts
VENDING MACHINES

COIN AND CURRENCY MECHANISMS

BILL VALIDATORS

CURRENCY SYSTEMS

BEVERAGE DISPENSERS

TEA SERVERS

OPEN FREEZING AND REFRIGERATED
SHOWCASES

HOTEL VENDOR SYSTEMS

CARD SYSTEMS

OVERVIEW OF OPERATING

ENVIRONMENT AND

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

ENDED MARCH 31, 2000

Vending machines, the core

business of this group, are now

facing the downside of the

demand cycle. Shipments of

vending machines across the

whole industry declined below

last year’s levels. In addition,

intense inter-company competi-

tion forced down prices as a

wave of restructuring swept

across beverage makers, bottlers

and vending machine operators.

Amid this challenging operating

environment, we attempted to

revitalize the market by intro-

ducing energy-saving vending

machines, machines with a

point-card function, machines

that can dispense PET bottles

and machines with a mecha-

nism for mixing drinks in the

cup. Nevertheless, the general

slump across this industry meant

that both volume and monetary

sales declined year on year.

In the cold-chain equipment

field, sales suffered due to

depressed consumer spending in

Japan. As their sales declined,

supermarkets and convenience

stores were loath to open new

branches, leading to a drop in

shipments of refrigerated show-

cases across the entire cold-chain

equipment industry. Amid these

severe times, our new energy-

saving, environmentally friendly

refrigerated showcase, ECOMAX

V, which boasts a total control

system to achieve a sharp

improvement in energy conserva-

tion, was well received by the

market and made a considerable

contribution to sales. Refriger-

ated cases specifically for dietary

and nutritional drinks to conve-

nience stores also performed

well thanks to a change in the

Drugs, Cosmetics and Medical

Instruments Pharmaceutical Law

that enabled convenience stores

to sell these drinks. Nevertheless,

sales in this field as a whole

failed to reach the level of the

previous fiscal year.

In currency equipment &

systems, prices continued to fall.

However, we managed to

maintain sales at last year’s level

by introducing new automatic

change machines with inte-

grated coin and bill capabilities,

and a coin mechanism with a

slot-in coin escrow function to

prevent loss through counterfeit

¥500 coins. The latter machines

solve a problem that had been

confronting the industry.

Retail Support Equipment
& Systems Group

Kuniyasu Takeda      President, Retail Support Equipment & Systems Company

BY PROVIDING OUTSTANDING EQUIPMENT,

SYSTEMS AND SERVICES IN THE RETAIL SECTOR—A SECTOR IN WHICH FOOD PRODUCTS ACCOUNT FOR

THE LARGEST MARKET SHARE—WE AIM TO BE ACKNOWLEDGED AS “THE MOST VALUABLE SERVICE PROVIDER.” IN DRINK VENDING MACHINES,

WE WILL EXPAND OUR MARKET SHARE BY PUTTING IN PLACE A DEVELOPMENT STRUCTURE CAPABLE OF

  MEETING EXACTING CUSTOMER NEEDS AND INCREASING PRICE COMPETITIVENESS.

IN THE FOOD RETAIL SECTOR, WHERE SERVICE IS THE KEY, WE ARE DEVELOPING A

  SOLUTIONS BUSINESS TO PROVIDE TOTAL SUPPORT FOR STORES, RANGING FROM THE SUPPLY  AND INSTALLATION OF EQUIPMENT TO DATA PROCESSING

SERVICES. OUR OBJECTIVE IS TO BE THE INDUSTRY LEADERS IN RETAIL SUPPORT.

RETAIL SUPPORT EQUIPMENT & SYSTEMS GROUP
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The Urban series of vending machines offers a wide variety of styles to match any location.
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RETAIL SUPPORT EQUIPMENT & SYSTEMS GROUP

In machines for the food-

service field, sales of chilled and

frozen beverage dispensers and

hotel vendor systems dropped

below last year’s levels, although

high-performance beer dispens-

ers that pour a measured

amount and farm stockers

performed quite well.

As a result of the above, sales

for this group declined by 6.1%

to ¥140.2 billion ($1,323

million). Operating income

increased by 1.2% to ¥6.2

billion ($59 million).

MEASURES TAKEN DURING

THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

Although market conditions for

vending machines were extremely

testing across the entire industry,

we endeavored to expand our

already overwhelming market

share. In other product fields, we

implemented several policies to

establish a solid operating base.

First, we launched the Com-

prehensive Reform Program and

the 2nd CR50 Program at our

Mie Factory. The Comprehensive

Reform Program, which began in

April 1999 and will run for two

years, was designed to funda-

mentally reform development

and production processes for

vending machines with a view to

giving the group a decisive

competitive advantage in quality,

cost and delivery time.

Specifically, the program

incorporates four main

elements: raise development

capabilities and speed through

the use of CAD technology;

halve production lead time by

reforming all processes between

receipt of orders and shipment

of finished products through the

introduction of enterprise

resource planning (ERP) soft-

ware; improve quality levels in

all aspects, from R&D to mass

production; speed up peripheral

operations related to production

lines and raise efficiency.

The 2nd CR50 Program is an

extensive cost-reduction initia-

tive. It establishes targets for

each product sector with the

aim of dramatically reducing

both production and distribu-

tion costs.

The second major initiative

involved the enhancing of our

production and marketing

centers. We restructured

currency equipment & systems

operations by integrating the

development and production

operations of our Matsumoto

Factory, Azumi Fuji Company

and Shinshu Fuji Co., Ltd. By

concentrating all operations in

the Shinshu region, we aim to

integrate production lines and

improve operating efficiency.

And in the cold-chain equip-

ment field, the operations of an

affiliated company that was

based within our Suzuka Factory

were transferred to our Mie

Factory. Overseas, Shanghai

General Fuji Refrigeration

Equipment Co., Ltd. inaugu-

rated production at its own

factory, and we launched

overseas vending machine

operations by establishing

Rengo Fuji Vending Machines

Co., Ltd. in Taiwan.

Whether taking a coffee break,
shopping or at the amusement center,
users appreciate the convenience of
Fuji Electric’s currency equipment
and systems.

Notes:
1. Statistics for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999 and the fiscal

year ended March 31, 2000 reflect actual results for this group.
2. Statistics for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2001 are based on

management’s estimates as at May 11, 2000.
3. Net sales include inter-segment transactions.

� Net Sales
� Share of Total Net Sales
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Our third policy initiative called

for the reinforcing of our vend-

ing machine solutions business

and our R-business. To this end,

we launched the Vending

Machines Solutions Project in

October 1999 to enhance our IT

capabilities in this field. The

project aims to offer specific

solutions tailored to meet the

needs of customers and carry

out basic IT research and devel-

opment. At the same time, we

have been upgrading vending

machine service centers, which

provide installation, maintenance

and overhaul services.

MANAGEMENT POLICIES

AND PROJECTED RESULTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDING

MARCH 31, 2001

The biggest task facing this

group is to confront and sur-

mount the challenges presented

by a severe operating environ-

ment to build an unshakable

foundation for earnings. Vend-

ing machines will be at the core

of this initiative. As Japan’s

leading vending machine

supplier, we intend to live up to

our reputation for quality and

technological excellence and

further increase our market

share by staying several steps

ahead of the opposition. Policies

to strengthen our operating

base include the reallocation of

personnel to improve R&D and

quality control, the strengthen-

ing of alliances and the effective

use of personnel from other

companies. We are also review-

ing the product planning and

R&D functions of Fuji Electric

and subsidiary Fuji Denki Reiki

Co., Ltd. Finally, we will build a

sound profit structure by means

of the Comprehensive Reform

Program and the TCR 80

Program at our Mie Factory;

TCR 80, or Total Cost Reduction

80, aims to lower the break-

even point to under 80%. The

overall aim is to put in place a

development structure that can

cater precisely to the needs of

customers and give us a sharper

competitive edge.

At the same time, we will

strive to increase our ability to

generate earnings in other fields

to complement those generated

from core vending machine

operations. In terms of specific

policies, we will accelerate

implementation of our new

business model for cold-chain

equipment operations, which is

based on fitting out entire

stores. In currency equipment &

systems, we will ramp up

earnings by capitalizing on the

introduction of the new ¥2000

bill and ¥500 coin. In vending

machines, we will offer a wide

range of information-based

services and solutions to raise

the efficiency of vending

machine operators. Ultimately, by

setting out to raise efficiency in

store management and food

distribution processes, we intend

to position ourselves as a food

distribution solutions provider.

Finally, we will aggressively

rein in costs and reduce total

assets to improve cash flows.

Projections for the fiscal year

ending March 31, 2001 are for

net sales of ¥145.0 billion and

operating income of ¥6.0 billion.

Fuji Electric’s freezing and refrigerated
showcases for supermarkets maximize
freshness while conserving energy.

R&D
Expenditures

� Plant and
Equipment
Investment
(Including
Leases)

� Depreciation

Operating
Income
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATING

ENVIRONMENT AND RESULTS FOR

THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2000

This group is primarily involved in distribu-

tion, printing and information-related

services, as well as services spanning R&D,

insurance, real estate and finance. The bulk

of its business is conducted with Fuji Electric

and members of the Fuji Electric Group.

Net sales during the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2000 fell year on year by 4.4%

to ¥128.0 billion ($1,208 million). Operating

income rose by 2.0% to ¥2.0 billion

($19 million).

The subsidiaries Fuji Distribution Co., Ltd.,

Fuji Electric Information Service Co., Ltd.,

Fuji Electric Corporate Research and Devel-

opment Ltd., Fuji Life Corp. and Fuji Electric

Finance and Accounting Support Co., Ltd.

form the core of this business group.

FUJI DISTRIBUTION CO., LTD.

FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2000
NET SALES: ¥31.8 BILLION

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AT END OF YEAR: 559

Fuji Distribution’s primary business is distri-

bution services such as transport, packaging

and storage. It is also involved in interna-

tional logistics, the sale of equipment for

rationalizing distribution systems, processing

products prior to distribution and real estate

leasing. It is currently expanding services

beyond the confines of the Fuji Electric

Group with the aim of contributing to a

wide range of diverse regions.

Conditions across the distribution industry

remained severe during the year under

review, characterized by declining freight

volumes and widespread calls for streamlin-

ing operations and reducing fees. Amid this

challenging environment, Fuji Distribution

set about restructuring its operating base to

position itself as a comprehensive supplier

of distribution-related services. By redefining

itself as a provider of solutions for storage,

delivery and all other logistics requirements

of customers, Fuji Distribution also aims to

improve its own operating results.

During the year, Fuji Distribution expanded

the scale of its activities by acquiring an

87.5% stake in TOKYO JUKI TRANSPORT

Co., Ltd., the distribution subsidiary of JUKI

CORPORATION.

FUJI ELECTRIC INFORMATION

SERVICE CO., LTD.

FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2000
NET SALES: ¥14.4 BILLION

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AT END OF YEAR: 656

The operations of Fuji Electric Information

Service encompass printing, bookbinding,

copying and publishing. It also supplies and

installs information systems and provides

information-related services, produces

pictures, video images and advertisements,

and markets data processing equipment,

electrical equipment and other products.

The year under review was a highly

significant one for this company. IT became

the driving force behind key projects to

launch new businesses and expand the

scope of operations. This drive paid off with

tangible results: the year marked the release

of the Web-compatible accounting package

F-LINE, the new search system VEXT

SEARCH and the sales promotion system

K-CASP. At the same time, the company

continued to offer system development

solutions.

� Net Sales
� Share of Total Net Sales

Notes:
1. Statistics for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999 and the fiscal

year ended March 31, 2000 reflect actual results for this group.
2. Statistics for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2001 are based on

management’s estimates as at May 11, 2000.
3. Net sales include inter-segment transactions.

OTHERS
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FUJI ELECTRIC CORPORATE

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT LTD.

FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2000
NET SALES: ¥9.0 BILLION

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AT END OF YEAR: 504

Fuji Electric Corporate Research and

Development Ltd. engages in investigative

surveys and research and development

related to natural science and industrial

technologies. Its primary focus is on the

fields of semiconductors and electronics,

measuring, control and mechatronics, the

environment and energy, and materials and

analytical technology.

 During the year, the company embarked

on a transformation to become a research

organization that the Fuji Electric Group can

rely on to make substantial contributions to

its businesses. For this purpose, activities were

narrowed to support for the development of

new technologies and products in three

strategic fields: electronics, the environment

and energy. This approach led directly to

many accomplishments.

FUJI LIFE CORP.

FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2000
NET SALES: ¥7.0 BILLION

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AT END OF YEAR: 173

Fuji Life’s activities include life and damage

insurance agency operations, as well as real

estate sales, leasing and brokerage services.

It also offers domestic and overseas travel

services and foreign exchange, in addition

to outsourcing services, support and sales

relating to office equipment, utensils, gifts

and other products.

The year under review was characterized

by ongoing hardship in Japan’s real estate

sector, despite government attempts to

stimulate demand. Nevertheless, net sales

were supported by the sale of 37 detached

houses and housing sites in the cities of

Kawasaki and Ichihara. In the travel sector,

the company opened a travel agency at

Gate City Ohsaki in Osaki, Tokyo, with a

view to generating new business from

companies in the surrounding area, as well

as from individuals. Finally, October 1999

saw the company take over Kansai Fuji Life

to broaden its field of operations and

reinforce its operating base.

FUJI ELECTRIC FINANCE AND

ACCOUNTING SUPPORT CO., LTD.

FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2000
NET SALES: ¥1.4 BILLION

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AT END OF YEAR: 38

Fuji Electric Finance and Accounting Support

Co., Ltd. undertakes finance and account-

ing-related tasks for the Fuji Electric Group

to help raise the efficiency of administrative

functions at group members. Other activities

include bill payment services and the cen-

tralized management of excess cash held at

Fuji Electric Group companies, including the

provision of loans to Group members.

Notable achievements for the year

included the completion of development of

a cash management system (CMS), which

allows the company to function as an

internal bank for Group companies. The

system became operational in July 1999,

and by the end of March 2000, some 68

companies had signed up. The system aims

to utilize cash and other assets more effi-

ciently by centralizing the management of

cash, deposits and payments. Other advan-

tages are more streamlined clerical proce-

dures at participating Group companies and

a reduction in fees paid for fund transfers.

R&D
Expenditures

� Plant and
Equipment
Investment
(Including
Leases)

� Depreciation

Operating
Income
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MEASURES TAKEN DURING THE YEAR

UNDER REVIEW

The Fuji Electric Group divides R&D activities

into two areas: group R&D and corporate

R&D. In group R&D, each of the four business

groups conducts R&D in areas directly related

to its own field of operations. Corporate R&D

includes the development of fundamental

technologies that are relevant to the Company

as a whole, as well as work in new areas yet

to be assigned to any particular group.

A major undertaking during the year was

the realignment of R&D along with the launch

of the internal company system in April 1999.

As a result, each of the four groups has been

handed greater authority and responsibility for

R&D and the allocation of R&D resources. The

aim is to better align development activities

with actual operations, giving a more flexible

development structure in which the fruits of

research see commercial application at the

earliest possible stage.

We also undertook a comprehensive review

of our R&D guidelines to incorporate greater

market awareness. This resulted in a more

systematic approach in which an awareness of

R&D objectives is shared across the entire Fuji

Electric Group. Until now, research had taken

place in a diverse range of areas, with promis-

ing research projects being earmarked for

further development. The new system stresses

deliberation of research requirements at the

outset, narrowing the focus to areas with

potentially high levels of return or that are

pivotal to future business development. The

outcome is higher efficiency across all R&D

operations.

R&D HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

In the Energy & Electric Systems Group,

design and manufacture of a new series

of two-pole air-cooled turbine generators

with an output of up to 300 MVA

started after the completion of prototype

trials. Also, with a view to offering total

logistics solutions services, work is

progressing on a system that automati-

cally measures electricity use in factories

and office buildings and a GPS-based

transport management system for industrial

waste vehicles. In the ED&C·Drive Systems

Group, we developed a high-performance

vector controlled inverter that yields the

fastest response time in the industry, and a

compact controller system for machinery

that incorporates multi-function modular

software. As a result, we were able to

broaden our range of injection molding

applications. In the Electronics Group, we

developed a power supply IC for use in
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mobile devices, as well as a power switch-

ing device that reduces high harmonics and

electromagnetic noise. In the Retail Support

Equipment & Systems Group, we developed

a CPU board for vending machines that

uses application software to monitor and

transmit data on sales and demand. The

result is greater convenience for the bever-

age makers and distributors who are our

major customers in this sector. We also

developed a coin mechanism with a slot-in

escrow function to prevent loss through

counterfeit ¥500 coins.

R&D POLICIES FOR THE CURRENT

FISCAL YEAR

During the fiscal year ending March 31,

2001, the focus will be on core opera-

tions that give the Fuji Electric Group its

strong position in the industry. At the

same time, we will develop businesses in

the new growth areas of environment,

information systems, services and components.

This calls for an R&D system that can produce

results across groups. To accomplish this, we

will pursue greater efficiency in all our R&D

activities, proceeding in accordance with the

R&D guidelines that we completely revised last

year. The result will be a new offensive that

calls for investing the equivalent of 4% of sales

in R&D. We will rigidly adhere to this figure.

Three areas are being targeted this year:

areas that can yield commercial results in a

relatively short period of time; current areas of

strength; and new IT solutions businesses. In

the Electronics Group, we will focus resources

on the development of new components in

our specialty fields of power semiconductors,

analog ICs and magnetic disks. In the ED&C·

Drive Systems Group, we will concentrate on

core components such as magnetic contactors

and inverters. And in the Retail Support

Equipment & Systems Group, we will develop

solutions businesses related to vending

machines and cold-chain equipment.
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Fuji Electric’s advanced transport management
system provides real-time information on the
position of industrial waste vehicles and the waste
being transported by means of GPS satellites.
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E N V I R O N M E N T A L  A C T I V I T I E S

BASIC POLICY FOR ENVIRONMENTAL

PROTECTION

It has long been a fundamental policy of the

Fuji Electric Group to run its operations in

harmony with the environment. As a manu-

facturer of electric equipment, this stance has

underpinned our efforts to develop products

and technology to enable people to lead

comfortable lives in symbiosis with their

natural surroundings.

In 1992, we formulated the Basic Policies of

the Fuji Electric Group on Environmental

Protection. This policy rests on the concept of

supplying ecologically sound products and

technology that contribute to environmental

preservation. Moreover, we endeavor to

produce these products and technologies

using environmentally friendly methods. By

adhering to this policy, we strive to operate

our businesses in a sustainable way, making

effective use of finite resources.

ESTABLISHING AN ENVIRONMENTAL

MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Fuji Electric Group led the industry by

obtaining BS7750 certification for environ-

mental management for its Suzuka Factory

back in 1995. We followed this by obtaining

ISO 14001 certification for all 10 of our

domestic production bases in 1998. Currently,

we are striving to reduce our environmental

impact by adhering to these standards and

actively implementing various environmental

protection measures.

As of the end of the last fiscal year, 11 of

our 24 manufacturing subsidiaries had

obtained ISO 14001 certification. Plans call for

the certification of the remaining manufactur-

ing subsidiaries by March 2002. Furthermore,

we are bolstering our green procurement

activities with the aim of ensuring that more

of the companies with whom we do business

are ISO 14001 certified.

From hereon, we will also be enhancing our

system for disclosing information concerning

environmental activities. As part of this

initiative, we will be working toward

obtaining certification for the new inter-

national standard for environmental

performance evaluation, ISO 14031. At

the same time, we will review our envi-

ronmental performance on an ongoing

and company-wide basis, and publicize

our findings both within the Company

and to the outside world.

The Fuji Electric Group intends to

continue implementing exhaustive envi-

ronmental preservation measures in

accordance with international standards.

In tandem with efforts to raise productiv-

ity, we will continue reducing our impact

on the environment through a series of

countermeasures designed to prevent

global warming, reduce industrial waste,

eliminate harmful chemical substances

and ensure the environmental soundness of

all products.

PREVENTING GLOBAL WARMING

Cutting emissions of greenhouse gases, a

process that encompasses energy conserva-

tion, is perhaps the single most important

issue facing the global environment.

Accordingly, we are putting in place

measures to reduce emissions of carbon

dioxide (CO2), sulfur hexafluoride (SF6),

hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs) and

perfluorocarbons (PFCs).

As electric power stations emit consider-

able amounts of CO2, we are taking various

steps to reduce energy consumption. We

are reducing unit energy consumption by

investing in energy-saving and highly

efficient plant and equipment. During the

fiscal year ended March 31, 2000, we
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surpassed by far the requirement of

reducing unit energy consumption by a

minimum of 1% as stipulated in the Energy

Conservation Act. On a non-consolidated

basis, we reduced total energy consumption

by 2,952t-C (in equivalent CO2) compared

with the previous year. This resulted in unit

energy consumption of 8.93t-C per ¥100

million, a year-on-year decrease of 2.7%.

Regarding SF6, primarily used as an

insulating gas in switchgear, we are cutting

emissions and reducing the overall amount

we use by introducing gas recycling devices

and making products more compact. HFCs

and PFCs are used mainly in production

processes and as coolants in products. We

are keeping in step with industry-wide

efforts to reduce their use by improving

production processes and replacing them

with alternatives. We also set targets for

cutting emissions of these greenhouse

gases each fiscal year and actively work

towards meeting them.

TECHNOLOGY TO PRESERVE THE

ENVIRONMENT

The disposal of products containing lead

is problematic as this element can

contaminate soil and seep into ground-

water, thereby putting public health at

risk. This is the reason why we have

developed two types of lead-free solder,

high melting point and low melting

point, which are now being used in

some of our products. We are also

making a positive contribution to envi-

ronmental protection by supplying

products that reduce environmental

impact. One example in the field of

energy conservation, where we already

have a strong track record, was the develop-

ment and release of EcoPASSION, a new type

of eco monitoring system that serves as a low-

cost means of measuring electricity consump-

tion. Based on the revised Energy Conservation

Act, EcoPASSION measures the energy con-

sumption of each facility, compiling data on a

standard PC by means of a flexible wireless

network. As such, it is a low-cost electricity

management system that requires minimal

installation work and contributes to environ-

mental management and energy conservation.

DISCLOSURE OF ENVIRONMENTAL

INFORMATION

The Fuji Electric Group actively discloses

information on its current environmental

policies, planned countermeasures and its

environmental management structure. The aim

is to keep local people, customers, business

partners and all those who come into contact

in some way with the Fuji Electric Group

informed of specific environmental measures

being implemented and results achieved. We

also proactively disseminate information—by

means of catalogs, newspaper and magazine

advertising and environmental trade shows—to

raise the profile of products and technologies

that contribute to environmental preservation.

The results of our efforts to preserve the

environment during the last fiscal year will be

published in the forthcoming Environmental

Report for the Fiscal Year Ended March 2000.

Fuji Electric uses lead-free solder in the manufac-
turing process for power devices.
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S I X - Y E A R  S U M M A R Y
Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended March 31 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 2000

Net sales ................................................. ¥851,830 ¥852,060 ¥982,763 ¥945,382 ¥890,413 ¥856,305 $8,036,132
Cost of sales ........................................... 692,132 692,309 773,839 733,690 692,781 667,628 6,529,547
[Ratio to net sales (%)] ............................ 81.3 81.3 78.7 77.6 77.8 78.0
Selling, general and administrative
(SG&A) expenses ................................... 155,555 163,878 185,561 186,075 176,114 170,462 1,467,500

[Ratio to net sales (%)] ............................ 18.2 19.2 18.9 19.7 19.8 19.9
Operating income (loss) .......................... 4,143 (4,127) 23,363 25,616 21,517 18,214 39,085
[Ratio to net sales (%)] ............................ 0.5 (0.5) 2.4 2.7 2.4 2.1
Ordinary income (loss) ............................. (948) (6,044) 18,707 21,480 16,409 12,962 (8,943)
[Ratio to net sales (%)] ............................ (0.1) (0.7) 1.9 2.3 1.8 1.5
Income (loss) before income taxes
and minority interests ............................ (4,092) (11,665) 18,762 21,440 17,065 12,809 (38,604)

[Ratio to net sales (%)] ............................ (0.5) (1.4) 1.9 2.3 1.9 1.5
Net income (loss) .................................... (7,423) (17,388) 7,487 8,189 5,870 3,820 (70,028)
[Ratio to net sales (%)] ............................ (0.9) (2.0) 0.8 0.9 0.7 0.4

Yen U.S. dollars

Net income (loss) per share ..................... ¥(10.38) ¥(24.31) ¥10.47 ¥11.45 ¥8.21 ¥ 5.37 $(0.098)
Cash dividends per share ........................ 0.00 0.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 0.000
Payout ratio (%) ...................................... — — 76.4 69.8 97.4 149.2

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Plant and equipment investment
(including leases) ................................... ¥ 35,851 ¥ 48,319 ¥ 54,446 ¥ 58,703 ¥   — ¥   — $  338,216

Depreciation ........................................... 34,393 33,993 31,808 28,467 25,234 — 324,462
R&D expenditures ................................... 28,252 34,831 36,003 35,951 — — 266,528
Return on equity (%) .............................. — — 4.2 4.6 3.3 2.2
Total assets .............................................. 937,233 994,761 981,332 936,552 880,026 826,715 8,841,821
Asset turnover (times) ............................. 0.88 0.86 1.02 1.04 1.04 1.04
Debt ........................................................ 447,697 461,957 390,807 303,339 249,364 229,450 4,223,557
Debt ratio (%) ......................................... 47.8 46.4 39.8 32.4 28.3 27.8

Number of employees ............................. 27,641 28,173 25,939 26,389 27,127 28,082
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C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  R E V I E W
Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements of Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. for the fiscal year

ended March 31, 2000 include the accounts of 51 subsidiaries in Japan and 13

subsidiaries overseas.

O P E R A T I N G  R E S U L T S

N E T  S A L E S

Consolidated net sales were largely unchanged from the previous fiscal year at

¥851,830 million ($8,036 million). The completion of large orders for power plant

equipment to overseas customers contributed to higher sales for the Energy & Electric

Systems Group, while the Electronics Group also recorded an increase in sales due to

favorable demand for power semiconductors and ICs. These gains were offset by lower

sales of magnetic disks in the Electronics Group, and by a drop in sales of vending

machines, the main business of the Retail Support Equipment & Systems Group.

By region, net sales in Japan declined by 1.6% to ¥717,093 million ($6,765 million).

Overseas sales, however, rose by 9.4% to ¥134,737 million ($1,271 million). As a

proportion of total net sales, overseas sales increased from 14.5% to 15.8%.

E N E R G Y  &  E L E C T R I C  S Y S T E M S  G R O U P

Net sales for this group increased year on year by 5.3% to ¥381,662 million

($3,601 million).

In terms of specific fields, the deliveries of large projects for power plant equipment

to overseas customers contributed to higher sales in the field of electric power genera-

tion and substations. In the industrial systems field, large orders were weighed down

by depressed private-sector capital investment, which led to a decline in sales in this

area. Sales in the control systems field remained stable, supported by solid demand for

electric systems for use at water purification and sewage treatment facilities.

E D & C · D R I V E  S Y S T E M S  G R O U P

Net sales for this group fell by 2.0% to ¥156,090 million ($1,473 million).

In the electric distribution and control systems field, strenuous efforts were made to

develop new products to expand demand, and model changes were introduced for most

mainstay product lines. These efforts combined with moderate recovery in domestic

and Asian markets during the second half of the fiscal year to push sales above last

year’s level. In drive systems, market conditions remained challenging. Sales in this field

declined due to curbs on capital expenditures in Japan during the first half of the year,

stagnation in the key Chinese market and the strength of the yen against European

currencies, despite the company’s efforts to expand demand with the launch of new

models in core product lines.

Net Sales
(Years ended March 31)
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E L E C T R O N I C S  G R O U P

Net sales in this group declined by 8.8% to ¥116,518 million ($1,099 million).

Sales in the power semiconductors field rose on increased demand from the IT and

communications sector and recovery in industrial sector markets from the second part

of the fiscal year. In the IC field, favorable demand for power supply ICs for use in

PCs, peripheral devices and mobile telephones supported higher sales. Magnetic disks,

on the other hand, recorded a decrease in sales due to a marked drop in prices and a

decline in the number of disks used per HDD.

R E T A I L  S U P P O R T  E Q U I P M E N T  &  S Y S T E M S  G R O U P

Net sales in this group declined by 6.1% to ¥140,215 million ($1,323 million).

In vending machines, this group’s main area of operations, sales decreased in the

second half of the fiscal year due to a further drop in prices and a decline in unit

sales volume. Similarly, in freezing and refrigerated showcases, capital expenditure

cutbacks adversely affected sales. In currency equipment and systems, sales remained

firm thanks to the introduction of new products to cope with the recent spate of

counterfeit coin incidents in Japan.

O T H E R S

Sales in Others fell by 4.4% to ¥128,049 million ($1,208 million) due to stagnation in

the markets related to plant construction and distribution.

I N C O M E

Cost of sales remained virtually unchanged from the previous fiscal year at ¥692,132

million ($6,530 million). Selling, general and administrative expenses fell by 5.1% to

¥155,555 million ($1,468 million). As a result, operating income reversed a prior year

loss, improving ¥8,270 million to ¥4,143 million ($39 million). This improvement can

be attributed to several factors: lower costs as a result of restructuring; deliveries of

large orders in the Energy & Electric Systems Group; and the recovery of demand for

low-voltage circuit breakers and switches in the ED&C·Drive Systems Group and for

power semiconductors and ICs in the Electronics Group.

By group, higher sales for the Energy & Electric Systems Group contributed to

operating income of ¥6,116 million ($58 million), a major improvement over last year’s

operating loss of ¥954 million. In the ED&C·Drive Systems Group, recovery in the

electric distribution and control systems market in the year’s second half combined

with a reduction in costs, including fixed costs, to yield an operating loss of ¥2,478

million ($23 million), a marked improvement over last year’s operating loss of ¥6,101

million. In the Electronics Group, higher sales of power semiconductors and ICs were

outweighed by poor performance in magnetic disks, leading to an operating loss of

¥7,552 million ($71 million), against last year’s loss of ¥5,071 million. In the Retail

Support Equipment & Systems Group, operating income increased by 1.2% to ¥6,246

million ($59 million), despite the drop in sales. Others recorded a 2.0% increase in

operating income, at ¥2,011 million ($19 million).

Operating Income (Loss),
 Ratio to Net Sales
(Years ended March 31)
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Net financial expense increased from ¥835 million in the previous fiscal year to ¥2,225

million ($21 million) on account of a decrease in interest and dividends received.

Extraordinary income of ¥50,830 million ($480 million) was recorded on the sale

of marketable securities and of property, plant and equipment, mainly idle land. This

was outweighed by extraordinary losses of ¥53,974 million ($509 million). The main

components of this were restructuring charges, losses on the devaluation of market-

able securities and payment for amortization of past service costs relating to company

pension plans.

As a result, loss before income taxes was ¥4,092 million ($39 million), an improve-

ment of ¥7,573 million compared with the previous fiscal year’s loss of ¥11,665

million. Net loss was ¥7,423 million ($70 million) due to the deduction of ¥2,748

million ($26 million) in income taxes and ¥583 million ($6 million) in minority interests

in net loss of consolidated subsidiaries.

R & D  E X P E N D I T U R E S

R&D expenditures decreased by 18.9% to ¥28,252 million ($267 million). This repre-

sents 3.3% of net sales, down from 4.1% last year. By group, R&D expenditures were

¥11,689 million ($110 million) in the Energy & Electric Systems Group, ¥2,805 million

($26 million) in the ED&C·Drive Systems Group, ¥7,056 million ($67 million) in the

Electronics Group, and ¥2,758 million ($26 million) in the Retail Support Equipment &

Systems Group. Expenditures for R&D in core technologies related to the whole com-

pany amounted to ¥3,944 million ($37 million).

Major R&D projects for the year included the development of a new series of two-

pole air-cooled turbine generators with an output of up to 300 MVA, a GPS-based

transport management system for waste-product transportation, a high-performance

vector controlled inverter, a power supply IC for use in mobile phones, a power switch-

ing device that reduces levels of higher harmonics and noise, and a coin mechanism

with a slot-in escrow function to prevent loss through counterfeit ¥500 coins.

P L A N T  A N D  E Q U I P M E N T  I N V E S T M E N T

Plant and equipment investment dropped 25.8% year on year to ¥35,851 million

($338 million). In the Energy & Electric Systems Group, ¥10,213 million ($96 million)

was invested in a new factory building constructed at the Power Supply Equipment

Factory to house a state-of-the-art integrated production line for large-scale thermal

power plant equipment. In the ED&C·Drive Systems Group, ¥6,361 million ($60 million)

was invested in increasing production capacity for new products at the Fukiage Factory.

In the Electronics Group, plant and equipment investment amounted to ¥10,605

million ($100 million). This was used in enhancing the precision processing line for

power devices and upgrading facilities for high-density magnetic disks at the Matsumoto

Factory, and in rationalizing operations and increasing production capacity for power

devices at subsidiaries. In the Retail Support Equipment & Systems Group, part of the

R&D Expenditures,
Ratio to Net Sales
(Years ended March 31)
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Total Assets,
Shareholders’ Equity,
Shareholders’ Equity Ratio
(As of March 31)

Debt, Debt Ratio
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¥2,961 million ($28 million) invested in plant and equipment was used for the installa-

tion of production equipment at the Mie Factory for vending machines that dispense

PET bottles. Investments in Others was ¥5,711 million ($54 million).

Depreciation expense was ¥34,393 million ($324 million).

Note 1: Plant and equipment investment includes ¥4,886 million ($46 million) relating to capital leases for
property, plant and equipment.

Note 2: Depreciation expense does not include amortization of intangible assets.

F I N A N C I A L  P O S I T I O N

As of March 31, 2000, total assets stood at ¥937,233 million ($8,842 million), a

decrease of ¥57,528 million compared with a year earlier. Current assets decreased by

¥47,459 million, mainly due to a ¥41,976 million decrease in inventories.  Property,

plant and equipment decreased by ¥1,487 million as increases due to the consolida-

tion of additional companies were offset by curbs on capital expenditure and the sale

and retirement of facilities.

On the other side of the balance sheet, debt decreased by ¥14,260 million to

¥447,697 million ($4,224 million) due to reductions in commercial paper and the

redemption of bonds by reducing inventories and using cash and cash equivalents.

Shareholder’s equity dropped by ¥3,480 million to ¥153,945 million ($1,452 million)

due to the recording of a net loss this fiscal year.

C A S H  F L O W S

Net cash provided by operating activities was ¥1,175 million ($11 million), in spite of

the loss before income taxes of ¥4,092 million ($39 million). This result was due

mainly to inventory reduction and other measures to promote the more efficient use

of working capital.

Net cash provided by investing activities was ¥4,296 million ($41 million).

Extraordinary income from the sale of property and investment securities outweighed

an expense of ¥35,337 million ($333 million) for additions to property, plant

and equipment.

Net cash used by financing activities was ¥22,899 million ($216 million). This

resulted from reductions in commercial paper and the redemption of ¥20,000 million

in bonds, which outweighed proceeds from long-term debt and short-term borrowings.

As a result of the foregoing, cash and cash equivalents decreased by ¥17,932

million ($169 million).
� Debt

Debt ratio

� Total assets

� Shareholders’ equity

Shareholders’ equity ratio
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

As of March 31, 2000 and 1999 2000 1999 2000

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) .............................................................................. ¥ 49,440 ¥ 67,191 $  466,415
Short-term investments (Notes 2, 5 and 11) .................................................................. 113,287 100,387 1,068,745
Trade receivables ........................................................................................................... 288,943 292,526 2,725,878
Allowance for doubtful receivables ............................................................................... (2,049) (3,389) (19,330)
Inventories (Notes 2 and 4) ........................................................................................... 147,607 189,583 1,392,519
Deferred income taxes (Note 8) ..................................................................................... 8,908 4,024 84,038
Other current assets ...................................................................................................... 31,944 35,217 301,358

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS ................................................................................... 638,080 685,539 6,019,623

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 2 and 5):
Land .............................................................................................................................. 34,480 34,309 325,283
Buildings and structures ................................................................................................ 189,505 175,953 1,787,783
Machinery and equipment ............................................................................................ 293,099 309,492 2,765,085
Construction in progress ............................................................................................... 3,729 9,120 35,179

520,813 528,874 4,913,330
Less accumulated depreciation ...................................................................................... (300,540) (307,114) (2,835,283)

NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ......................................................... 220,273 221,760 2,078,047

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:
Investment securities (Notes 2, 5 and 11):

Unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates .................................................................. 14,056 22,556 132,604
Other ......................................................................................................................... 27,859 24,562 262,821

Long-term loans receivable ........................................................................................... 1,252 1,596 11,811
Deferred income taxes (Note 8) ..................................................................................... 5,653 4,092 53,330
Other investments and other assets .............................................................................. 31,158 36,345 293,944
Allowance for losses on overseas investments .............................................................. (539) (539) (5,085)
Allowance for doubtful receivables ............................................................................... (559) (1,150) (5,274)

TOTAL INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS ....................................................... 78,880 87,462 744,151

¥937,233 ¥994,761 $8,841,821

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements

C O N S O L I D A T E D  B A L A N C E  S H E E T S
Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2000 1999 2000

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term borrowings (Note 5) .................................................................................... ¥241,937 ¥252,141 $2,282,425
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) .................................................................. 28,954 28,974 273,151
Trade payables .............................................................................................................. 173,902 179,494 1,640,585
Advances from customers ............................................................................................. 50,797 78,322 479,217
Accrued income taxes (Note 8) ..................................................................................... 2,463 3,093 23,236
Deferred income taxes (Note 8) ..................................................................................... 8 9 75
Other current liabilities .................................................................................................. 53,861 53,670 508,123

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES ............................................................................. 551,922 595,703 5,206,812

LONG-TERM DEBT (Note 5) .......................................................................................... 176,806 180,842 1,667,981
LIABILITY FOR SEVERANCE PAYMENTS (Note 2) .......................................................... 19,353 23,856 182,576
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES (Note 8) ............................................................................. 345 2,214 3,255
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES ................................................................................... 1,628 1,580 15,358

TOTAL LIABILITIES ............................................................................................. 750,054 804,195 7,075,982

MINORITY INTERESTS IN CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES ............................................. 33,234 33,141 313,528

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Note 9):

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Common stock, ¥50 par value:
Authorized—1,600,000,000 shares
Issued—715,080,369 shares as of March 31, 2000 ...................................................... 47,586 — 448,924

715,080,369 shares as of March 31, 1999 ...................................................... — 47,586 —
Capital surplus .............................................................................................................. 38,397 38,397 362,236
Retained earnings (Note 6) ............................................................................................ 67,962 71,442 641,151

153,945 157,425 1,452,311
Less shares of common stock held by the Company ..................................................... 0 0 0

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ....................................................................... 153,945 157,425 1,452,311

¥937,233 ¥994,761 $8,841,821
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

Years ended March 31, 2000 and 1999 2000 1999 2000

NET SALES (Note 2) ....................................................................................................... ¥851,830 ¥852,060 $8,036,132
COST OF SALES ............................................................................................................. 692,132 692,309 6,529,547

GROSS PROFIT ....................................................................................................... 159,698 159,751 1,506,585
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES ................................................. 155,555 163,878 1,467,500

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) .................................................................................. 4,143 (4,127) 39,085

NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES):
Interest and dividends income ................................................................................... 4,508 5,896 42,529
Interest expense ........................................................................................................ (6,733) (6,731) (63,519)
Other, net .................................................................................................................. (2,866) (1,082) (27,038)

(5,091) (1,917) (48,028)

ORDINARY LOSS ................................................................................................... (948) (6,044) (8,943)
EXTRAORDINARY LOSS, NET (Note 7) .......................................................................... (3,144) (5,621) (29,661)

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND MINORITY INTERESTS ................................... (4,092) (11,665) (38,604)
INCOME TAXES (Notes 2 and 8) ............................................................................ 2,748 5,813 25,924

LOSS BEFORE  MINORITY INTERESTS .................................................................... (6,840) (17,478) (64,528)
MINORITY INTERESTS IN NET (INCOME) LOSS OF
CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES ............................................................................ (583) 90 (5,500)

NET LOSS ............................................................................................................... ¥  (7,423) ¥ (17,388) $ (70,028)

U.S. dollars
Yen (Note 3)

2000 1999 2000

PER SHARE AMOUNTS:
Net loss (Note 2) ........................................................................................................ ¥(10.38) ¥(24.31) $(0.098)

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

C O N S O L I D A T E D  S T A T E M E N T S  O F  O P E R A T I O N S
Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
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Thousands Millions of yen

Number of
shares of Retained
common Common Capital earnings

Years ended March 31, 2000 and 1999 stock stock  surplus (Note 6)

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 1998 ............................................................................. 715,080 ¥ 47,586 ¥ 38,397 ¥ 92,259
Net loss for the year ............................................................................................... — — — (17,388)
Cash dividends paid ............................................................................................... — — — (2,860)
Bonuses to directors ............................................................................................... — — — (232)
Decrease resulting from increase of consolidated subsidiaries ................................ — — — (337)

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 1999 ............................................................................. 715,080 ¥ 47,586 ¥ 38,397 ¥ 71,442
Net loss for the year ............................................................................................... — — — (7,423)
Increase resulting from adoption of liability method .............................................. — — — 7,023
Bonuses to directors ............................................................................................... — — — (65)
Decrease resulting from increase of consolidated subsidiaries ................................ — — — (2,935)
Decrease resulting from decrease of consolidated subsidiaries ............................... — — — (80)

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2000 .............................................................................. 715,080 ¥ 47,586 ¥ 38,397 ¥ 67,962

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 3)

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 1999 ................................................................................................ $448,924 $362,236 $673,981
Net loss for the year .................................................................................................................. — — (70,028)
Increase resulting from adoption of liability method ................................................................. — — 66,255
Bonuses to directors .................................................................................................................. — — (613)
Decrease resulting from increase of consolidated subsidiaries ................................................... — — (27,689)
Decrease resulting from decrease of consolidated subsidiaries .................................................. — — (755)

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2000 ................................................................................................. $448,924 $362,236 $641,151

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

C O N S O L I D A T E D  S T A T E M E N T S  O F  S H A R E H O L D E R S ’  E Q U I T Y
Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

Year ended March 31, 2000 2000 2000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Loss before income taxes and minority interests .......................................................................... ¥ (4,092) $ (38,604)
Depreciation and amortization .................................................................................................... 35,297 332,991
Decrease in allowance for doubtful receivables ........................................................................... (1,942) (18,321)
Decrease in liability for severance payments ................................................................................ (4,522) (42,660)
Interest and dividends income ..................................................................................................... (4,508) (42,529)
Interest expense .......................................................................................................................... 6,733 63,519
Exchange loss .............................................................................................................................. 263 2,481
Gain on sales of investment securities ......................................................................................... (21,311) (201,047)
Gain on sales of securities ........................................................................................................... (20,002) (188,698)
Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment .......................................................................... (10,237) (96,576)
Extraordinary loss on the conversion of business structure .......................................................... 7,454 70,321
Loss on devaluation of marketable securities ............................................................................... 6,070 57,264
Decrease in trade receivables ....................................................................................................... 2,427 22,896
Decrease in inventories ................................................................................................................ 45,185 426,274
Decrease in trade payables .......................................................................................................... (3,843) (36,255)
Decrease in advances from customers ......................................................................................... (27,521) (259,632)
Other, net .................................................................................................................................... 2,584 24,378

Cash generated from operations .......................................................................................... 8,035 75,802

Interest and dividends received .................................................................................................... 4,485 42,311
Interest paid ................................................................................................................................ (6,720) (63,396)
Income taxes paid ....................................................................................................................... (4,625) (43,632)

Net cash provided by operating activities ............................................................................. 1,175 11,085

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Payments for purchase of marketable securities .......................................................................... (32,908) (310,453)
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities ............................................................................... 33,796 318,830
Additions to property, plant and equipment ................................................................................ (35,337) (333,368)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment ................................................................ 18,414 173,717
Payments for purchase of investment securities .......................................................................... (2,276) (21,472)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities ............................................................................... 21,891 206,519
Disbursements for long-term loans .............................................................................................. (14,876) (140,340)
Decrease in long-term loans ........................................................................................................ 14,278 134,698
Other, net .................................................................................................................................... 1,314 12,397

Net cash provided by investing activities .............................................................................. 4,296 40,528

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Decrease in short-term borrowings ............................................................................................. (9,757) (92,047)
Proceeds from long-term debt ..................................................................................................... 17,598 166,019
Repayment of long-term debt ..................................................................................................... (30,304) (285,887)
Dividends paid to minorities ........................................................................................................ (437) (4,123)
Other, net .................................................................................................................................... 1 9

Net cash used for financing activities ................................................................................... (22,899) (216,029)

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ................................ (504) (4,754)

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ....................................................................... (17,932) (169,170)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ............................................................. 67,191 633,877
INCREASE RESULTING FROM INCREASE OF CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES ................................... 181 1,708

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ........................................................................ ¥49,440 $466,415

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

C O N S O L I D A T E D  S T A T E M E N T  O F  C A S H  F L O W S
Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. and  Consolidated Subsidiaries
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N O T E S  T O  T H E  C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S
Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Note 1

BASIS OF PREPARING

CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared from the accounts main-
tained by Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries in accordance with the consoli-
dated financial statements filed with the Minister of Finance in Japan and in conformity with
accounting principals and practices generally accepted in Japan, which may differ in some material
respects from accounting principles and practices generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions
other than Japan.

In preparing these statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to
consolidated financial statements prepared domestically in Japan in order to present these statements
in a form that is more familiar to readers outside Japan.

 In addition, the notes to the consolidated financial statements include information which is not
required under accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Certain reclassifications have been made in the 1999 consolidated financial statements to conform
to the classification used in 2000.

a. Principles of consolidation
Effective April 1, 1999, the Company adopted control or influence concept in accordance with the
new accounting standard for consolidation, while the Company adopted the ownership concept
before March 31, 1999.

Under the control or influence concept, the accompanying consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of the Company and, with minor exceptions, those of its subsidiaries, whether
directly or indirectly controlled (together, the “Companies”). All significant intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The Company's remaining subsidiaries
whose gross assets, net sales, net income (loss) and retained earnings  are not significant in the
aggregate in relation to the comparable figures in the consolidated financial statements, have not
been consolidated.

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates are not accounted for by the equity method.
The excess of the Company's investments in consolidated subsidiaries over its equity in the net

assets at the date of acquisition was not material and has been fully amortized.
b. Cash equivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all short-term, highly liquid
instruments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
c. Foreign currency translation
Current receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen
at exchange rates in effect at the respective balance-sheet dates. All other accounts denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at historical exchange rates. The resulting
exchange losses and gains are charged or credited to income.

The asset, liability, income and expense accounts of the consolidated subsidiaries outside Japan
are translated into Japanese yen at applicable fiscal year-end rates of those companies. The resulting
translation adjustments are recorded in assets as cumulative translation adjustment in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.
d. Inventories
Raw materials are stated at cost determined by the most recent purchase price method. Finished
goods and work in process are stated at actual cost determined by accumulated production cost for
contract items or average cost for regular production items, except that finished goods of certain
consolidated subsidiaries are priced by the most recent purchase price method. In accordance with
accounting practices generally accepted in the heavy electric industry, inventories include items
with a manufacturing period exceeding one year.
e. Marketable securities and investment securities
Marketable securities included in short-term investments and investment securities are mainly stated
at cost determined by the moving average method.
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Note 3

U.S. DOLLAR AMOUNTS

f. Depreciation
Depreciation is computed by the declining-balance method at rates based on the estimated useful
lives of the assets, while the straight-line method is applied to buildings of the Company and domestic
subsidiaries acquired after April 1, 1998.
g. Liability for severance payments and pension plans
Employees who terminate their services with the Companies are, under most circumstances,
entitled to lump-sum severance payments determined by reference to their current basic rate of
pay and length of service. The Company and most subsidiaries generally provide for this liability to
the extent of 40% of the amount which would be required to be paid if all employees voluntarily
terminated their services at the balance-sheet date.

In addition to lump-sum severance payments, the Company and some subsidiaries generally oper-
ate pension plans to supplement the public welfare pension plan. Payments to such pension funds,
including amortization of past service costs, are charged to income when made.

Some subsidiaries have adopted non-contributory defined benefit founded pension plan. The
funding policy is to make contributions that can be deducted for Japanese income tax purpose.
h. Research and development costs
Research and development costs are charged to income as incurred in accordance with new accounting
standard for research and development costs.
i. Revenue recognition
Sales of products are generally recognized in the accounts as delivery is made. Sales of installation
products are recognized in the accounts when installation is completed.
j. Income taxes
Effective April 1, 1999, the Companies adopted liability method for tax-effect accounting, which
previously based on the deferral method, to recognize the effect of all temporary differences in the
recognition of assets and liabilities for tax and financial purposes in accordance with new accounting
standard for tax-effect accounting.
k. Net loss per share
Net loss per share is computed, based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding dur-
ing the respective years.

The U.S. dollar amounts included in accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes
thereto represent the arithmetic results of translating yen into dollars at ¥106.00=U.S.$1, the
approximate rate at March 31, 2000. The U.S. amounts are presented solely for the convenience
of the readers outside Japan.

Note 4

INVENTORIES

Inventories at March 31 comprised the following:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2000 1999 2000

Finished goods ............................................................................ ¥ 75,138 ¥100,363 $  708,849
Work in process .......................................................................... 58,717 76,205 553,934
Raw materials ............................................................................. 13,752 13,015 129,736

¥147,607 ¥189,583 $1,392,519

Note 5

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Short-term borrowings at March 31 consisted of the following:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2000 1999 2000

Loans, principally from banks ...................................................... ¥179,937 ¥174,641 $1,697,519
Commercial paper ...................................................................... 62,000 77,500 584,906

¥241,937 ¥252,141 $2,282,425

The weighed average interest rates on short-term borrowings at March 31, 2000 and 1999 are 0.49% and 0.80%, respectively.
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Long-term debt at March 31 consisted of the following:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2000 1999 2000

Loans, principally from banks and insurance companies ............. ¥ 65,760 ¥ 49,816 $  620,379

Bonds issued by the Company:
2.5% ¥ bonds due 2000 ............................................................. — 20,000 —
2.7% ¥ bonds due 2000 ............................................................. 20,000 20,000 188,679
2.95% ¥ bonds due 2001 .......................................................... 20,000 20,000 188,679
2.0% ¥ bonds due 2002 ............................................................. 20,000 20,000 188,679
2.05% ¥ bonds due 2002 .......................................................... 20,000 20,000 188,679
2.15% ¥ bonds due 2003 .......................................................... 20,000 20,000 188,679
2.25% ¥ bonds due 2003 .......................................................... 20,000 20,000 188,679
2.35% ¥ bonds due 2004 .......................................................... 20,000 20,000 188,679

205,760 209,816 1,941,132
Less: Portion due within one year ............................................... 28,954 28,974 273,151

¥176,806 ¥180,842 $1,667,981

The weighed average interest rates on loans, principally from banks and insurance companies at March 31, 2000 and 1999 are
3.06% and 2.73%, respectively.

The amounts of assets pledged as collateral for short-term borrowing and long-term debt were as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2000 1999 2000

Time deposit (included in short-term investments) ..................... ¥  330 ¥ — $ 3,113
Marketable securities (included in short-term investments)
and investment securities .......................................................... 5,429 4,434 51,217

Property, plant and equipment ................................................... 22,632 11,293 213,510

¥28,391 ¥15,727 $267,840

As of March 31, 2000, the aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt during the next five
years are as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of U.S. dollars

Year ending March 31 yen (Note 3)

2001 ................................................................................................................. ¥ 28,954 $  273,151
2002 ................................................................................................................. 55,597 524,500
2003 ................................................................................................................. 51,224 483,245
2004 ................................................................................................................. 49,467 466,670
2005 and thereafter ......................................................................................... 20,518 193,566

¥205,760 $1,941,132

Note 6

RETAINED EARNINGS
AND DIVIDENDS

Annual appropriation of retained earnings is recorded in the financial year when approved at the
shareholders' meeting.

Note 7

EXTRAORDINARY LOSS, NET

Extraordinary loss, net comprised the following:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2000 1999 2000

Gain on sales of securities ........................................................... ¥19,280 ¥10,176 $181,887
Gain on sales of investment securities

Unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates ............................... — 627 —
Others ..................................................................................... 21,311 — 201,047

Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment ......................... 10,237 4,421 96,576
Loss on devaluation of marketable securities .............................. (6,070) — (57,264)
Loss on liquidation of subsidiaries ............................................... — (180) —
Payments for amortization of past service costs (Note 2) ............ (5,242) (5,314) (49,453)
Extraordinary loss on the conversion of business structure ......... (42,475) (15,351) (400,708)
Others ......................................................................................... (185) — (1,746)

¥ (3,144) ¥ (5,621) $ (29,661)
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Note 8

INCOME TAXES

The components of income taxes were as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2000 1999 2000

Current ....................................................................................... ¥3,994 ¥4,891 $37,679
Deferred ..................................................................................... (1,246) 922 (11,755)

¥2,748 ¥5,813 $25,924

The Company and domestic subsidiaries are subject to corporate income tax, prefectural and
municipal inhabitant taxes and enterprise tax, based on income.

The significant components of deferral tax assets and liabilities at March 31, were as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2000 2000

Deferred tax assets:
Accrued severance benefits ........................................................................ ¥ 4,103 $ 38,708
Inventories ................................................................................................. 3,513 33,142
Tangible fixed assets ................................................................................... 3,459 32,632
Accrued employee benefits ........................................................................ 2,947 27,802
Tax loss carryforwards ................................................................................ 4,559 43,009
Other ......................................................................................................... 2,059 19,424

Gross deferred tax assets ............................................................................... 20,640 194,717
Less: Valuation allowance ........................................................................... (2,802) (26,434)

Total deferred tax assets ................................................................................ ¥17,838 $168,283

Deferred tax liabilities
Retained earnings appropriated for tax deductible reserves ....................... ¥ (3,010) $ (28,396)
Other ......................................................................................................... (620) (5,849)

Gross deferred tax liabilities ........................................................................... (3,630) (34,245)

Net deferred tax assets .................................................................................. ¥14,208 $134,038

Reconciliation of the differences between the statutory tax rate and the effective income tax rate is
as follows:

2000

Statutory income tax rate .................................................................................................................. 42.1%
Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes .......................................................................... (22.4)
Valuation allowance ....................................................................................................................... (47.7)
Other ............................................................................................................................................. (39.1)

Effective income tax rate ................................................................................................................... (67.1)

Note 9

CONTINGENT  LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities at March 31 were as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2000 1999 2000

Notes discounted and endorsed ................................................. ¥ 2,017 ¥ 2,624 $ 19,028
Guarantees ................................................................................. 19,883 33,884 187,575
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Note 10

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has expanded its business segment reporting in the fiscal year ended March 31,
2000 in accordance with reorganization of the Company. The Company’s primary business activities
include (1) Energy & Electric Systems, (2) ED&C•Drive Systems, (3) Electronics, (4) Retail Support
Equipment & Systems and (5) Others. A summary of net sales, operating costs and expenses, and
operating income (loss) by segment of business activities for the years ended March 31, 2000 and
1999 were as follows:

Millions of yen

Energy & Retail Support Elimination
Electric ED&C•Drive Equipment & and Consolidated

2000 Systems Systems Electronics systems Others Total Corporate total

Sales
Unaffiliated
customers ............... ¥377,424 ¥138,392 ¥114,790 ¥139,583 ¥ 81,641 ¥851,830 ¥  — ¥851,830

Intersegment ............ 4,238 17,698 1,728 632 46,408 70,704 (70,704) —

Total sales .................... 381,662 156,090 116,518 140,215 128,049 922,534 (70,704) 851,830
Operating costs
and expenses ............. 375,546 158,568 124,070 133,969 126,038 918,191 (70,504) 847,687

Operating income (loss) .. ¥ 6,116 ¥  (2,478) ¥  (7,552) ¥ 6,246 ¥ 2,011 ¥ 4,343 ¥ (200) ¥ 4,143

Total assets .................. ¥324,795 ¥132,474 ¥149,584 ¥110,947 ¥103,420 ¥821,220 ¥116,013 ¥937,233

Depreciation and
amortization .............. ¥ 6,748 ¥ 5,017 ¥ 16,476 ¥ 3,763 ¥ 3,192 ¥ 35,196 ¥  101 ¥ 35,297

Capital expenditure ..... ¥ 9,905 ¥ 5,568 ¥ 8,316 ¥ 2,944 ¥ 5,310 ¥ 32,043 ¥  91 ¥ 32,134

Millions of yen

Energy & Retail Support Elimination
Electric ED&C•Drive Equipment & and Consolidated

1999 Systems Systems Electronics systems Others Total Corporate total

Sales
Unaffiliated
customers ............... ¥359,732 ¥135,040 ¥126,797 ¥148,554 ¥ 81,937 ¥852,060 ¥  — ¥852,060

Intersegment ............ 2,656 24,288 941 830 51,961 80,676 (80,676) —

Total sales .................... 362,388 159,328 127,738 149,384 133,898 932,736 (80,676) 852,060
Operating costs
and expenses ............. 363,342 165,429 132,809 143,214 131,925 936,721 (80,533) 856,187

Operating income (loss) .. ¥ (954) ¥  (6,101) ¥  (5,071) ¥ 6,169 ¥ 1,972 ¥  (3,985) ¥ (142) ¥  (4,127)

Total assets .................. ¥365,532 ¥133,820 ¥159,542 ¥112,578 ¥106,883 ¥878,356 ¥116,404 ¥994,761

Depreciation and
amortization .............. ¥ 6,070 ¥ 5,243 ¥ 17,494 ¥ 3,429 ¥ 1,717 ¥ 33,955 ¥  104 ¥ 34,059

Capital expenditure ..... ¥ 7,607 ¥ 5,914 ¥ 11,956 ¥ 4,463 ¥ 9,977 ¥ 39,920 ¥  3 ¥ 39,923

Thousands of U.S. dollars  (Note 3)

Energy & Retail Support Elimination
Electric ED&C•Drive Equipment & and Consolidated

2000 Systems Systems Electronics systems Others Total Corporate total

Sales
Unaffiliated
customers ............... $3,560,607 $1,305,578 $1,082,927 $1,316,824 $  770,196 $8,036,132 $   — $8,036,132

Intersegment ............ 39,985 166,966 16,296 5,957 437,815 667,019 (667,019) —

Total sales .................... 3,600,592 1,472,544 1,099,223 1,322,781 1,208,011 8,703,151 (667,019) 8,036,132
Operating costs
and expenses ............. 3,542,891 1,495,929 1,170,475 1,263,853 1,189,031 8,662,179 (665,132) 7,997,047

Operating income (loss) .. $  57,701 $ (23,385) $ (71,252) $  58,928 $  18,980 $  40,972 $ (1,887) $  39,085

Total assets .................. $3,064,110 $1,249,760 $1,411,176 $1,046,675 $  975,637 $7,747,358 $1,094,463 $8,841,821

Depreciation and
amortization .............. $  63,664 $  47,334 $  155,438 $  35,504 $  30,098 $  332,038 $   953 $  332,991

Capital expenditure ..... $  93,446 $  52,532 $  78,457 $  27,777 $  50,080 $  302,292 $   859 $  303,151

*Segment information for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999 has been reclassified to conform with current segments.

The overseas sales of the Companies for the years ended March 31, 2000 and 1999 were
¥134,737 million ($1,271,103 thousand) and ¥123,206 million accounted for 15.8% and 14.5%
of consolidated net sales, respectively.
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Note 11

MARKETABLE SECURITIES

AND INVESTMENT
SECURITIES

Carrying amounts, net unrealized holding gains and fair values of available-for-sale securities at
March 31 were as follows:

Millions of yen

2000

Net
Carrying unrealized
amounts Fair values gains

Short-term investments
Equity securities .................................................................... ¥106,941 ¥213,046 ¥106,105
Bonds and debentures .......................................................... 877 909 32
Other securities ..................................................................... 293 284 (9)

¥108,111 ¥214,239 ¥106,128

Investment securities
Equity securities .................................................................... ¥17,699 ¥728,945 ¥711,245
Bonds and debentures .......................................................... — — —
Other securities ..................................................................... — — —

¥17,699 ¥728,945 ¥711,245

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 3)

2000

Net
Carrying unrealized
amounts Fair values gains

Short-term investments
Equity securities .................................................................... $1,008,877 $2,009,868 $1,000,991
Bonds and debentures .......................................................... 8,274 8,575 301
Other securities ..................................................................... 2,764 2,680 (84)

$1,019,915 $2,021,123 $1,001,208

Investment securities
Equity securities .................................................................... $166,972 $6,876,840 $6,709,858
Bonds and debentures .......................................................... — — —
Other securities ..................................................................... — — —

$166,972 $6,876,840 $6,709,858

Note 12

DERIVATIVES

The Companies operate globally, are exposed to market risk arising from fluctuation in foreign
currency exchange rates and enter into derivative financial instruments for the purpose of reducing
such risk. The Companies do not hold or issue derivatives for speculative or dealing purposes.

Because the counterparties to these derivatives are limited to authentic financial institutions, the
Companies do not anticipate any losses arising from credit risk.

All derivative transactions are entered into to hedge foreign currency exposures incorporated
within business. Accordingly, market risk in these derivatives is basically offset by opposite move-
ments in the value of hedged assets or liabilities.

The contract amounts of derivative financial instruments held as of March 31 were as follows.

Thousands of Thousands of
Millions of U.S. dollars Millions of U.S. dollars

yen (Note 3) yen (Note 3)

Amount of contract Estimated fair value

2000 2000 2000 2000

Forward exchange contracts:
To sell foreign currencies ........................................ ¥1,360 $12,830 ¥1,308 $12,340
To buy foreign currencies ....................................... 3,665 34,575 3,228 30,453
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R E P O R T  O F  I N D E P E N D E N T  C E R T I F I E D  P U B L I C  A C C O U N T A N T S

To the Board of Directors

Fuji Electric Co., Ltd.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2000

and 1999, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended,

expressed in Japanese yen. Our audits were made in accordance with auditing standards, procedures and practices generally accepted

and applied in Japan and, accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we

considered necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements, expressed in yen, present fairly the consolidated financial

position of Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries at March 31, 2000 and 1999, and the consolidated results of

their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles and practices generally

accepted in Japan and applied on a consistent basis.

As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. and consolidated subsidiaries have adopted

new accounting standards for consolidation, research and development costs and tax-effect accounting standards in the preparation

of their consolidated financial statements.

The U.S. dollar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect to the year ended March 31, 2000

are presented solely for convenience. Our audit also included the translation of yen amounts into U.S. Dollar amounts and, in our

opinion, such translation has been made on the basis described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Tokyo Japan

June 29, 2000

See note 1 to the consolidated financial statements which explains the basis of preparing the consolidated financial statements of Fuji

Electric Co., Ltd. under Japanese accounting principles and practices.

Certified Public Accountants Phone: 03 3503-1100
Hibiya Kokusai Bldg. Fax: 03 3503-1197
2-2-3, Uchisaiwai-cho
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0011
C.P.O. Box 1196, Tokyo 100-8641
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E N E R G Y  &  E L E C T R I C  S Y S T E M S

Fuji Electric Construction Co., Ltd. Planning and execution of a variety of plant facilities, electrical construction and installation

Fuji Denki Sosetsu Co., Ltd. Design and execution of building facilities; marketing of air conditioning equipment and OA equipment

FFC Limited Development, manufacture and marketing of information processing systems

Fuji Electric Engineering Co., Ltd. Engineering services, including maintenance services for a variety of plants and control systems,
on-site testing and equipment installation

Fuji Electric International Corp. Marketing and engineering of electrical plants, control systems and other products

Tochigi Fuji Co., Ltd. Manufacture and marketing of industrial and electrical measuring instruments

Azumi Fuji Company Manufacture, marketing and after-sales service of electric machinery and equipment

Fuji Electric Furnace Co., Ltd. Installation, adjustment and after-sales service of industrial melting and heating equipment

Fuji Electric Excel Co., Ltd. Broking and marketing of various goods; contract welfare business and others

Fuji Gas Turbine Research Center Co., Ltd. Research and development of gas turbines

Fuji Electric Power Engineering & Engineering and after-sales service of thermal power generation plant equipment
Service Co., Ltd.

Fuji Electric System Create Co., Ltd. Design, development and engineering of information systems, electronic information equipment and
integrated systems

Fuji Electric Instruments Co., Ltd. Development, manufacture and marketing of products such as industrial measuring instruments and
information processing terminals

Fuji Electric Chiba Tech. Co., Ltd. Maintenance, inspection and repair of substation equipment

E D & C · D R I V E  S Y S T E M S

Fuji Electric Technica Co., Ltd. Marketing of equipment and control products, as well as repair services for drive system products

Chichibu Fuji Co., Ltd. Manufacture and marketing of control equipment, lead frames for semiconductors and plastic products

Fuji Denki Seiki Co., Ltd. Manufacture and marketing of small-scale motors

Fuji Electric Motor Co., Ltd. Development and manufacture small- to medium-capacity industrial motors

Fuji Electric Hi-Tech Corp. Manufacture and marketing of direct-current stabilized power supply systems

Fuji/GE Private Ltd. Marketing of power distributors and control equipment in Southeast Asia

Fuji/GE Taiwan Co., Ltd. Marketing of power distributors, control equipment and drive system products in Taiwan

Fuji Electric Dalian Co., Ltd. Manufacture of low-voltage circuit breakers and motors

Ibaraki Fuji Co., Ltd. Manufacture, marketing and after-sales service of power distributors and control equipment

Fuji Electric F-Tech Co., Ltd. Manufacture of production lines, casts and jigs; design, manufacture and repair of power distributors and
control equipment

E L E C T R O N I C S

Fuji Electric Storage Device Co., Ltd. Development and manufacture of magnetic disks

Fuji Electric (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Manufacture of magnetic disks

Fuji Electric Imaging Device Co., Ltd. Development, manufacture and marketing of photoconductive drums for copiers and printers

U.S. Fuji Electric Inc. Manufacture and marketing of photoconductive drums for copiers and printers

Hong Kong Fujidenki Co., Ltd. Manufacture and marketing of photoconductive drums for copiers and printers

Hokuriku Fuji Co., Ltd. Manufacture of power semiconductors

Iiyama Fuji Co., Ltd. Manufacture of power semiconductors

Omachi Fuji Co., Ltd. Manufacture of ICs and power semiconductors

Fuji Electric Philippines, Inc. Manufacture of power semiconductors

Fuji Electric (Scotland) Ltd. Manufacture of power semiconductors

C O N S O L I D A T E D  S U B S I D I A R I E S
(As of July 1, 2000)
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Fuji Electric Taiwan Co., Ltd. Marketing of semiconductors

Fuji Denki Matsumoto Mechanics Co., Ltd. Design, manufacture and marketing of automation equipment, labor-saving equipment, production lines,
casts and jigs, semiconductor application devices and PC-boards

R E T A I L  S U P P O R T  E Q U I P M E N T  &  S Y S T E M S

Fuji Denki Reiki Co., Ltd. Marketing of vending machines, refrigerated showcases and retail information systems

Fuji Denki Reiki Seizo Co., Ltd. Manufacture of vending machines and freezing showcases

Fuji Electric V&C Altec Co., Ltd. Manufacture, marketing, installation and maintenance of refrigerated showcases; renewal, overhaul and
upgrade of vending machines

Shinshu Fuji Co., Ltd. Manufacture and repair of currency equipment

Hoei Plastics Co., Ltd. Processing of plastic and sheet mold

O T H E R S

Fuji Distribution Co., Ltd. General physical distribution operations including shipping, storage and packing

Fuji Electric Information Service Co., Ltd. Production and marketing of picture and video images including printing, copying, bookbinding,
photography, video and computer graphics

Fuji Electric Corporate Research Research and development of basic technologies, new technologies and products
and Development Ltd.

Fuji Life Corp. Handling of insurance, real estate, travel planning, currency exchange, commodity sales and employee benefits

Fuji Electric Finance and Handling of finance department, accounts receivable and accounts payable functions for
Accounting Support Co., Ltd. Fuji Electric and Group companies

Tottori Electric Manufacturing Co., Ltd. Manufacture of semiconductors, control devices for vehicles, tea servers and clean room equipment

Asahi Keiki Co., Ltd. Manufacture and marketing of thermostats, general-purpose electronic measuring instruments
and electronic control equipment

Fuji Almacs Co., Ltd. Marketing of semiconductor manufacturing devices, precision scientific measuring equipment,
industrial electronic equipment and chemical products

C O N S O L I D A T E D  S U B S I D I A R I E S  R E L A T E D  T O  M U L T I P L E  S E G M E N T S

Fuji EIC Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Tokai Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Kansai Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Hoei Denki Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Chubu Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Kyushu Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Hokkaido Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Tohoku Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Chugoku Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Shikoku Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Fuji Electric GmbH Marketing of semiconductors, photoconductive drums for copiers and printers, inverters, power distributors and
control equipment

Fuji Electric (Asia) Co., Ltd. Marketing of inverters, power distributors, control equipment and semiconductors

Fuji Electric Corp. of America Marketing of semiconductors, power distributors, control equipment and ring blowers

Fuji Electric Singapore Private Ltd. Marketing of semiconductors and inverters
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1999 2000

95.7
98.6

(Years ended March 31)
(¥ Billion)

��

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000

851.8

134.7

15.8%

852.0

123.2

14.5%

982.7

145.2

14.8%

945.3

135.4

14.3%

890.4

116.0

13.0%

(Years ended March 31)
(¥ Billion)

� Net sales
� Overseas net sales
　 Overseas net sales ratio

Asia (Except Japan)
73.2%

North America
9.3%

Europe 5.3%

Other Areas 12.2%

2000

Asia (Except Japan)
77.7%

1999

North America
9.0%

Europe 8.0%

Other Areas 5.3%

OVERSEAS NET SALES OVERSEAS NET SALES BY REGION

G L O B A L  A C T I V I T I E S

A S I A

NET SALES

(Except Japan)

MAJOR PRODUCTS SOLD DURING THE YEAR

�Thermal power plants for IPPs in Taiwan

�Geothermal power plants to a customer in Indonesia

�Substation systems to a customer in India

�Semiconductors

�Magnetic disks

�Power distributors and control equipment

� Inverters

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES

◆ Beijing

◆ Taipei

◆ Bangkok

MAJOR MANUFACTURING COMPANIES MAJOR BUSINESS

◆ Fuji Electric Dalian Co., Ltd. Low-voltage circuit breakers and motors

◆ Shanghai Fuji Electric Switchgear Co., Ltd. Switchgear

◆ Fuji GE Drives (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. Inverters

◆ Atai Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Small- to medium-capacity industrial
motors

◆ Shanghai General Fuji Refrigeration Refrigerated showcases
Equipment Co., Ltd.

◆ Hong Kong Fujidenki Co., Ltd. Photoconductive drums for copiers and
printers

◆ Fuji Electric (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Magnetic disks

◆ Fuji Electric Philippines, Inc. Power semiconductors

◆ P.T. Fuji Dharma Electric Watt-hour meters

MAJOR SALES COMPANIES MAJOR BUSINESS

◆ Fuji Electric (Asia) Co., Ltd. Inverters, power distributors, control
equipment and semiconductors

◆ Fuji Electric (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Inverters, switchgear and transformers

◆ Fuji/GE Taiwan Co., Ltd. Power distributors, control equipment
and drive system poducts in Taiwan

◆ Fuji Electric Taiwan Co., Ltd. Semiconductors

◆ Fuji Electric Singapore Private Ltd. Semiconductors and inverters

◆ Fuji/GE Private Ltd. Power distributors and control
equipment in Southeast Asia
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1999 2000

11.1

12.5

(Years ended March 31)
(¥ Billion)

1999 2000

9.8

7.1

(Years ended March 31)
(¥ Billion)

1999 2000

6.4

16.3

(Years ended March 31)
(¥ Billion)

For further details on overseas bases, please visit the following Web site:
http://www.fujielectric.co.jp/eng/Company/world.html

N O R T H  A M E R I C A

NET SALES

E U R O P E

NET SALES

O T H E R  A R E A S

NET SALES

(Oceania, Central & South America and Africa)

MAJOR PRODUCTS SOLD DURING THE YEAR

�Photoconductive drums for copiers and printers

�Semiconductors

� Inverters

MAJOR MANUFACTURING COMPANIES MAJOR BUSINESS

◆ U.S. Fuji Electric Inc. Photoconductive drums for copiers and
printers

◆ GE Fuji Drives America S.A. de C.V. Inverters

MAJOR SALES COMPANIES MAJOR BUSINESS

◆ Fuji Electric Corp. of America Semiconductors, power distributors,
control equipment and ring blowers

◆ GE Fuji Drives USA, Inc. Inverters

MAJOR PRODUCTS SOLD DURING THE YEAR

�Semiconductors

�Photoconductive drums for copiers and printers

� Inverters

MAJOR MANUFACTURING COMPANIES MAJOR BUSINESS

◆ Fuji Electric (Scotland) Ltd. Power semiconductors

◆ Fuji Electric France S.A. Measuring instruments

MAJOR SALES COMPANIES MAJOR BUSINESS

◆ Fuji Electric GmbH Semiconductors, photoconductive drums
for copiers and printers, inverters, power
distributors and control equipment

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

◆ Erlangen (Germany)

MAJOR PRODUCTS SOLD DURING THE YEAR

◆ Geothermal power plants to a customer in El Salvador

◆ Rectifier-transformer equipment for an aluminum smelting plant to a customer
in Mozambique
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O R G A N I Z A T I O N  C H A R T
(As of July 1, 2000)

� Corporate Planning Office

     � Planning Department

     � Personnel Department

� Group Management Office

     � Management Department

� Corporate Finance Office

     � Finance & Accounting Department

� Corporate Technology Planning Office

     � Planning Department

     � New Business Planning Department

� Corporate Production Planning Office

     � Production Technology Department

     � Purchasing Department

� IT Planning Office

� Global Business Promotion Office

     � China Department

� Export Control Office 

     � Internal Audit Department

     � Legal & Intellectual Property Department

     � Administration Services Department

� Sales Promotion Office

     � Administration Department

� Kansai Branch Office

� Chubu Branch Office

� Kyushu Branch Office

� Hokkaido Branch Office

� Tohoku Branch Office

� Hokuriku Branch Office

� Chugoku Branch Office

� Shikoku Branch Office

� Corporate Technology Development Office

     � Fuel Cells Department

     � IT Solution Department

     � Network Solution Department

     � Design Technology Department

     � Administration Department

� Corporate R & D Center

     � Production Technology Laboratory

     � Fuji Electric Hospital

Energy &  Electric Systems Company

President

ED&C � Drive Systems Company

Electronics Company

Retail Support Equipment & Systems Company

� Energy Systems Sales Division

� Public & Social Systems Sales Division

� Industrial Systems Sales Division

� Information Systems Sales Division

     � Sales Promotion Office

� Information Systems Division

� Environmental Systems Division

� Industrial & Transportation Systems Division

� Thermal Power Division

� Nuclear Power Division

� Customer Service Division

     � Hydro Power Promotion Office

     � Energy Solution Systems Division

� Tokyo Systems Factory

� Substation Systems Factory

� Power Supply Equipment Factory

� FE & KHI Nuclear Power Promotion Group

� Fuji-Siemens Energy System Promotion Group

� Plant Engineering Coordination Office

� Company Administration Division

� Sales Division

� International Sales Division

� Technology Planning Division

� ED&C � Drive Systems Division

     � Fukiage Factory

     � Otawara Factory

     � Suzuka Factory

     � Kobe Factory

� Power Supply Systems & Control Division

� Company Administration Division

� Semiconductors Sales Division

� ICs Division

� Power Semiconductors Division

� Computer Peripherals and Components Division

� Matsumoto Factory

     � Semiconductors Development Center

� Yamanashi Factory

� Company Administration Division

� Vending Machines & Specialty Equipment Division

� Card & Currency Equipment Division

� Technology Planning Division

� Mie Factory

� Company Administration Division
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For further information, please contact:

Fuji Electric Co., Ltd.
Corporate Communications
Tel : +81-3-5435-7206
Fax: +81-3-5435-7486
E-mail: info@fujielectric.co.jp

Printed on recycled paper

C O R P O R A T E  D A T A
(As of March 31, 2000)

Fuji Electric Co., Ltd.

H E A D  O F F I C E :

Gate City Ohsaki, East Tower,
11-2, Osaki 1-chome, Shinagawa-ku,
Tokyo 141-0032, Japan

E S T A B L I S H E D :

August 29, 1923

S E C U R I T I E S  C O D E  N U M B E R :

6504

S H A R E S  O F  C O M M O N  S T O C K

I S S U E D  A N D  O U T S T A N D I N G :

715,080,369

P A I D - I N  C A P I T A L :

¥47,586,067,310

N U M B E R  O F  S H A R E H O L D E R S :

59,712

N U M B E R  O F  E M P L O Y E E S :

Consolidated: 27,641
Non-consolidated: 9,963

P R I N C I P A L  S H A R E H O L D E R S :

Fujitsu Limited 10.40%
Asahi Mutual Life Insurance Co. 6.45%

BNY For Goldman Sachs International (Equity) 4.60%
The Dai-ichi Kangyo Bank, Limited 4.39%
The Furukawa Electric Co., Ltd. 3.75%

Royal Trust Corp of Canada, Client A/C 3.58%
The Industrial Bank of Japan, Limited 2.83%
Credit Suisse First Boston (Europe) Limited London re Prime Brokerage 2.17%

The Asahi Bank, Ltd. 1.71%
Furukawa Co., Ltd. 1.54%
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